
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

OCTOBER 17, 2011 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
October 17, 2011 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Talitha Pennington – Community of Christ-Troy Oaks 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

a) Presentation of the 2011 State Competition Trophy, for the Ninth Consecutive 
Year, to the Troy Police Pistol Team – Sergeant Wolfe, Sergeant Nastasi, 
Officer Bragg, Officer Cascioli, Officer Fitzpatrick, Officer Minton, Officer 
Stansbury and Officer Stopczynski ....................................................................... 1 

b) City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Presentation – July and August, 
2011 – Cindy Stewart to Present $600.05 to Mary Ellen Kearney with Cystic 
Fibrosis Foundation .............................................................................................. 1 

c) Troy Community Coalition 20th Anniversary & Appointment of Nancy Morrison 
as Executive Director ............................................................................................ 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 2 

E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 
for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver 2 



 

 

E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver 2 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 3 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 4 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 4 

H-1  No Postponed Items 4 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 4 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments 4 

a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority; Economic 
Development Corporation ..................................................................................... 4 

b) City Council Appointments: Animal Control Appeal Board; Charter Revision 
Committee; Election Commission; Historic District Commission; Liquor 
Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks and Recreation 
Board; Personnel Board; Traffic Committee; Zoning Board of Appeals ............... 4 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: 11 

a) Mayoral Nominations: None Submitted .............................................................. 11 
b) City Council Nominations: Employee Retirement System Board of 

Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust; Zoning Board of 
Appeals .............................................................................................................. 11 

I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 11 

I-4 Application for Transfer of Class C License to Troy Sports Restaurant 11 

I-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 12 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 13 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 13 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 13 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 13 



 

 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of October 3, 2011 .............................................. 13 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 13 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 13 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing 
Alliance (NIPA) Disk Based Backup System ...................................................... 13 

J-5 Public Works Consolidation Renovations 14 

J-6 Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Sanitary Sewer Easement and 
Acceptance of a Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement – Sidwell #88-20-32-200-
032, Cambridge Crossings Shops #2, LLC 14 

J-7 Purchase of Pre-Cast Concrete Restroom – Milverton Park 15 

J-8 Expansion and Purchase of Self-Checkout Stations for Troy Public Library 15 

J-9 Voting Delegate for the National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities and 
Exposition – November 2011 15 

J-10 Private Agreement for Evaline Extension Phase II – Project No. 06.909.3 16 

J-11 Private Agreement – Granite City Food and Brewery – Project No. 08.911.3 16 

J-12 Request for Approval of Robert Smith Relocation Claim – John R Road 
Improvement Project, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – 
Parcel 44 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011 16 

J-13 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 16 

J-14 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 
Funds 17 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 17 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 17 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 17 



 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 17 

L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 18 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 18 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 18 

N. REPORTS 18 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 18 

a) Election Commission-Final-September 1, 2011 ................................................. 18 
b) Planning Commission-Draft-September 13, 2011 .............................................. 18 
c) Election Commission-Draft-October 13, 2011 .................................................... 18 

N-2 Department Reports: 18 

a) Status of ICMA Recommendations – Fire Department ...................................... 18 
b) ICMA Implementation Plan and Progress Report – Police Department ............. 18 
c) ICMA Recommendations and Status Update – Department of Public Works .... 18 
d) Evaluation of Building Operations Efficiencies ................................................... 18 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 18 

a) Card of Appreciation from the Daughters of the American Revolution to 
Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin ....................................................................................... 18 

b) Letter of Appreciation and Congratulations to Cindy Stewart from Cheryl 
Whitton-Kaszubski with Leadership Troy on Being Selected the 2011 
Outstanding Volunteer for the Boys & Girls Club of Troy ................................... 18 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sarah Davis with Operation 
Homefront Thanking the Troy Police Honor Guard and K-9 Officers ................. 18 

d) Letter of Appreciation and Congratulations to Sergeant Zielinski from 
Leadership Troy on Being Selected the 2011 Outstanding Volunteer for Troy 
Youth Assistance ................................................................................................ 18 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 18 

a) Resolution from the Daughters of the American Revolution Expressing 
Appreciation to Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin .............................................................. 18 

N-5  Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Press Release – Lori Grigg Bluhm 
Elected Vice President for 2011-2012 18 

N-6  2011 Third Quarter Litigation Report 18 



 

 

O. STUDY ITEMS 18 

O-1  Troy’s Organizational Evolution to Economic Sustainability 18 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 18 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 18 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 19 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 19 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

Monday, November 14, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 19 
Monday, November 21, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 19 
Monday, November 28, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 19 
Monday, December 5, 2011 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 19 
Monday, December 19, 2011 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 19 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Talitha Pennington – Community of Christ-Troy Oaks 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of October 17, 2011 due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
a) Presentation of the 2011 State Competition Trophy, for the Ninth Consecutive 

Year, to the Troy Police Pistol Team – Sergeant Wolfe, Sergeant Nastasi, Officer 
Bragg, Officer Cascioli, Officer Fitzpatrick, Officer Minton, Officer Stansbury and 
Officer Stopczynski  

b) City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Presentation – July and August, 2011 
– Cindy Stewart to Present $600.05 to Mary Ellen Kearney with Cystic Fibrosis 
Foundation 

c) Troy Community Coalition 20th Anniversary & Appointment of Nancy Morrison as 
Executive Director 

 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) 

for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for property known as 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel #88-20-27-126-027, in 
accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward 
a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, 
Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
October 17,  2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 
300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-27-126-027; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Dialogue Marketing, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
48083, for eight (8) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on October 17, 
2011,  held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue 
Marketing, Inc., at 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083 may have the effect of substantially 
impeding the operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes 
within the City of Troy, after granting this certificate will not exceed 5% of an amount equal to 
the sum of the SEV of the City of Troy, plus the SEV of real and personal property thus 
exempted; 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc., 
at 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City 
of Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application to for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc., at 300 E. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-27-126-027, for personal property for a term of eight 
(8) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement 
between the City of Troy and Dialogue Marketing, Inc., and the payment of the fees in 
accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Dialogue Marketing, Inc., a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments 

a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority; Economic 
Development Corporation 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) – 4-Year Term 
 
Ernest Reschke (At Large) Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  
Douglas Schroeder (At Large) Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  
Ward Randol (In District) Term Expires 09/30/2014 

 
Economic Development Corporation 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 6-Year Term 
 
Charles Salgat Term Expires 04/30/2016 
  
Mark Miller Term Expires 04/30/2017 

 
Yes: 
No: 

b) City Council Appointments: Animal Control Appeal Board; Charter Revision 
Committee; Election Commission; Historic District Commission; Liquor Advisory 
Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks and Recreation Board; Personnel 
Board; Traffic Committee; Zoning Board of Appeals 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

1. Reconsidered Motion: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the attached Resolution #2011-10-227, moved by Kerwin and seconded by 
McGinnis, be RECONSIDERED by City Council in order to adjust term expiration dates in the 
Charter Revision Committee, Liquor Advisory Committee, and Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
2. Resolution to Amend City Council Nominations 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the attached Reconsidered Resolution 
#2011-10-227, to adjust Term Expiration Dates in the nominations for Charter Revision 
Committee, Liquor Advisory Committee and Parks and Recreation Board in order to maintain 
continuity of terms, as presented. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
3) Amended Resolution – City Council Nominations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Patrick Carolan Term Expires 09/30/2013 
  

Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Gretchen Waters, Steve Toth Term Expires 09/30/2014 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

 
Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Shirley Kanoza Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Bob Berk, Jerry Bloom Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 

Election Commission 
Appointed by Council – (2-Regular & 1-Charter) – 1-Year Term 
 

David Anderson Term Expires 01/31/2012 
  

Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/2012 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

W. Kent Voigt Term Expires 03/01/2013 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Patrick Hall Term Expires 01/31/2013 
  

W. Stan Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Dan Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Jesse Pappas Term Expires 07/31/2012 
  

Eunjoo Scherlinck Term Expires 07/31/2012 
 

Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Victor Freliga Term Expires 01/31/2014 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year 
Term 
 

Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 9/30/2013 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

 
Tod Gazetti and JoAnn Thompson Term Expires 9/30/2013 

  
Jeff Stewart Term Expires 9/30/2013 

  
Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 

  
Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 

  
Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 

 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Ann Comiskey Term Expires 4/30/2014 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Al Petrulis Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Richard Kilmer Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Peter Ziegenfelder Term Expires 1/31/2014 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term 
 

A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

4) Tally Vote of City Council Nominee Choices 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 

 
Tally of City Council Nominee Choices: 
Each City Council Member should indicate two nominees to fill the vacancies on the Animal 
Control Appeal Board from the following list of individuals placed into nomination at the 
October 3, 2011 Regular City Council meeting: 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

NOMINEES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 2 Selections for Nominations 
Jayne Saeger  
Steve Toth  
Gretchen Waters  

 
Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 

 
Tally of City Council Nominee Choices: 
Each City Council Member should indicate two nominees to fill the vacancies on the Charter 
Revision Committee from the following list of individuals placed into nomination at the 
October 3, 2011 Regular City Council meeting: 
 
NOMINEES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 3 Selections for Nominations 
Bob Berk  
Jerry Bloom  
Shirley Kanoza  

 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term 

 
Tally of City Council Nominee Choices: 
Each City Council Member should indicate three nominees to fill the vacancies on the Parks 
and Recreation Board from the following list of individuals placed into nomination at the 
October 3, 2011 Regular City Council meeting: 
 
NOMINEES: COUNCIL MEMBERS: 3 Selections for Nominations 
Kathleen Fejes  
Tod Gazetti  
Jeff Stewart  
JoAnn Thompson  

 
5) City Council Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 
Patrick Carolan Term Expires 09/30/2013 
  
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 09/30/2014 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

  
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 09/30/2014 

 
Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  
Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  
Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 

 
Election Commission 
Appointed by Council – (2-Regular & 1-Charter) - 1-Year Term 
 
David Anderson Term Expires 01/31/2012 
  
Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/2012 

 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 
W. Kent Voigt Term Expires 03/01/2013 

 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 
Patrick Hall Term Expires 01/31/2013 
  
W. Stan Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  
Dan Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  
Jesse Pappas Term Expires 07/31/2012 
  
Eunjoo Scherlinck Term Expires 07/31/2012 

 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 
Victor Freliga Term Expires 01/31/2014 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

Parks & Recreation Board *City Management Recommends the Parks & Recreation Board 
Retain Its Current Title 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year 
Term 
 
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 9/30/2013 
 
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 9/30/2013 
  
(as Determined by Tally Vote) Term Expires 9/30/2013 
  
Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  
Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  
Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 

 
Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 
Ann Comiskey Term Expires 4/30/2014 

 
Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 
Al Petrulis Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  
Richard Kilmer Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  
Peter Ziegenfelder Term Expires 1/31/2014 

 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term 
 
A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  
David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/2014 

 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations:  

a) Mayoral Nominations: None Submitted 

b) City Council Nominations: Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree 
Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust; Zoning Board of Appeals 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and 
Trust 
Appointed by Council - City Council Representative 
  
Maureen McGinnis  City Council Representative Unexpired Term 04/15/2012 
  
Zoning Board of Appeals  
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term  
  

Alternate Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Alternate Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Application for Transfer of Class C License to Troy Sports Restaurant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
(a) Transfer Class C License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011- 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL a liquor license 
request as indicated below, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE 
the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

Liquor License Applicant : Troy Sports Restaurant, LLC 

Type of License Requested : 
Transfer Class C Liquor License with Entertainment Permit, 
Outdoor Service (2 Areas) and Official Permit (Food) from 
Joseph Koolisky’s, LLC to Troy Sports Restaurant, LLC 

Located at : 1835 E. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48083 
MLCC Request # : 620592 

 
and 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter into agreements with applicants 
for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with the liquor license applicant named in the approved resolution above, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That the 2011-2012 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road 
Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy for Snow and Ice Control of certain 
primary and local roads, which are described and outlined in Exhibit A, is hereby APPROVED 
and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the necessary documents.  A 
copy of this agreement, which is authorized by the provisions of 1951 PA 51 (MCL 247.651 et 
seq.), shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this Meeting.  
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of October 3, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing 

Alliance (NIPA) Disk Based Backup System 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
WHEREAS, The Information Technology Department has utilized a tape based backup system 
as the primary backup-and-restore medium for off-site data storage; and  
 
WHEREAS, The tape based backup system is very labor intensive to manage and relatively 
slow, and with increasing data storage needs, shrinking backup windows, the need to recover 
critical applications quickly and declining disk costs have moved the technology market into a 
disk based solution;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to 
replace the old tape backup system and purchase a new disk based system which provides 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

faster restores, greater reliability, ease of management, and data de-duplication from CDW-G 
through the NIPA Technology Solutions Contract #083052-01 competitively solicited and 
awarded by Tucson, AZ for an estimated cost of $21,800.00 and recurring costs estimated at 
$3,000.00 per year.  
 
J-5 Public Works Consolidation Renovations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That City Staff is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete office space renovations at 
the Public Works facility for the consolidation of DPW Divisions, as described in Attachment A, 
Proposed Floor Plan; and to expend an estimated $43,910.00 in accordance with Attachment 
B, Detailed Pricing, utilizing in-house personnel and materials, approved contracts and 
standard purchasing procedures. 
 
J-6 Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Sanitary Sewer Easement and 

Acceptance of a Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement – Sidwell #88-20-32-200-032, 
Cambridge Crossings Shops #2, LLC 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has received a request from Cambridge Crossings Shops #2, 
LLC, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-32-200-032, to abandon a portion of a 
permanent sanitary sewer easement as recorded in Liber 21432, Pages 290 with Oakland 
County Register of Deeds; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has received in its’ place a permanent easement for sanitary 
sewer from the property owners of Sidwell #88-20-32-200-032, Cambridge Crossings Shops 
#2, LLC, and  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the portion of the permanent sanitary sewer easement as recorded in 
Liber 21432, Page 290 is hereby ABANDONED, and that City Council AUTHORIZES the 
Mayor and City Clerk to EXECUTE a Quit Claim Deed to the property owners Cambridge 
Crossings Shops #2, LLC for that portion of the abandoned sanitary sewer easement; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the permanent easement for sanitary sewer from 
Cambridge Crossings Shops #2, LLC, owners of the property having Sidwell #88-20-32-200-
032 is hereby ACCEPTED; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall RECORD both the Quit Claim Deed and 
permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

J-7 Purchase of Pre-Cast Concrete Restroom – Milverton Park 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the purchase of one (1) new Denali 
Pre-cast Concrete Restroom Facility at Milverton Park to the product manufacturer, CXT, Inc., 
an LBFoster Company of Spokane, WA as detailed in quote #GZEN900NOL-1, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, for an estimated total cost of 
$61,250.00. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
J-8 Expansion and Purchase of Self-Checkout Stations for Troy Public Library 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
WHEREAS, On January 26, 2009, Troy City Council approved the purchase of an integrated 
library system solution for the Troy Public Library to the highest rated bidder, Polaris Library 
Systems of Syracuse, NY, as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2009-01-025-F4b); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, In an effort to continually improve service delivery and provide greater efficiencies 
to the patrons of the library, the system should now be expanded to include self-checkout 
stations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Due to the complexity of the system, it is desirable to allow the company who 
installed and currently maintains the system to expand it, thus avoiding corruption of the 
software;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DETERMINES it to be in the 
public’s best interest to AUTHORIZE the City of Troy to utilize the services of Polaris Library 
Systems of Syracuse, NY, to purchase and install three (3) Polaris Library System Self-
Checkout stations for an estimated total cost of $36,481.00, in accordance with their quotation 
#2011-0732 dated 8/10/2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting.  
 
J-9 Voting Delegate for the National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities and 

Exposition – November 2011 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That City Council APPOINTS Robin Beltramini to be the voting delegate at 
the November 9, 2011 National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities and Exposition. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 16 - 

J-10 Private Agreement for Evaline Extension Phase II – Project No. 06.909.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Murray Deagle, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of sanitary sewer, paving, water main, sidewalks and soil erosion on the site and in 
the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-11 Private Agreement – Granite City Food and Brewery – Project No. 08.911.3 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and Granite City Food and Brewery, is hereby 
APPROVED for the installation of Water Main and Storm & Sanitary Sewer Connections, and 
the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the documents, a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-12 Request for Approval of Robert Smith Relocation Claim – John R Road 

Improvement Project, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – 
Parcel 44 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the Relocation Claim from Robert Smith, pertaining to the 
City of Troy’s acquisition of property at 6695 John R, having Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011, and 
AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $650. 
 
J-13 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the attached Municipal Credit and 
Community Credit Contract for FY 2012, which transfers Municipal Credit funds in the amount 
of $79,648 and Community Credit funds in the amount of $88,586 to Troy Medi-Go Plus, for the 
operation of transportation service for senior citizens and persons with disabilities. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Council are AUTHORIZED to execute 
the contract, with copies to be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of the meeting. 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 17 - 

J-14 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011-10-      
 
WHEREAS, The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current 
program year allocation sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th); 
and  
 
WHEREAS, The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing 
communities to protect funds from their two most recent program years to help comply with this 
regulation; and 
 
WHEREAS, All unobligated 2009 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2011; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy may protect unobligated 2009 funds from recapture for one 
additional year by requesting a waiver; and  
 
WHEREAS, A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2009 line item to the 
Manager of the Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than 
December 1, 2011. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy hereby requests to waive 
recapture of 2009 CDBG funds as follows: 
 
Account Number   Project Name    Amount  
172170-730744   Flood Drain Improvements  $119,279.00 
172160-732170   Public Services (Yard Services) $  52,191.00 
172160-730789   General Program Admin  $    2,500.00 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 18 - 

L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Election Commission-Final-September 1, 2011 
b) Planning Commission-Draft-September 13, 2011 
c) Election Commission-Draft-October 13, 2011 

N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Status of ICMA Recommendations – Fire Department  
b) ICMA Implementation Plan and Progress Report – Police Department  
c) ICMA Recommendations and Status Update – Department of Public Works  
d) Evaluation of Building Operations Efficiencies 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Card of Appreciation from the Daughters of the American Revolution to Mayor Pro Tem 

Kerwin  
b) Letter of Appreciation and Congratulations to Cindy Stewart from Cheryl Whitton-

Kaszubski with Leadership Troy on Being Selected the 2011 Outstanding Volunteer for 
the Boys & Girls Club of Troy 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sarah Davis with Operation Homefront 
Thanking the Troy Police Honor Guard and K-9 Officers  

d) Letter of Appreciation and Congratulations to Sergeant Zielinski from Leadership Troy 
on Being Selected the 2011 Outstanding Volunteer for Troy Youth Assistance 

 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
a) Resolution from the Daughters of the American Revolution Expressing Appreciation to 

Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 
N-5  Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Press Release – Lori Grigg Bluhm 

Elected Vice President for 2011-2012 
 
N-6  2011 Third Quarter Litigation Report 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 
O-1  Troy’s Organizational Evolution to Economic Sustainability  
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA October 17, 2011 
 

- 19 - 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, November 14, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 21, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 28, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 5, 2011 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 19, 2011 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

 



 PROCLAMATION 
 TROY COMMUNITY COALITION 20TH ANNIVERSARY & 

  APPOINTMENT OF NANCY MORRISON AS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
  

WHEREAS, The Troy Community Coalition for the Prevention of Drug and Alcohol Abuse was created in 
1991, as a non-profit organization dedicated to improving the quality of life for all who live or work in Troy, by 
promoting a lifestyle free from the abuse of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs; and  
 
WHEREAS, Since its inception 20 years ago, the Troy Community Coalition (TCC) has developed and 
implemented prevention strategies based on our community’s needs; influencing and promoting community norms 
to those supporting a lifestyle free from the abuse of alcohol, tobacco and other drugs through environmental 
strategies affecting the total population; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy is a community that establishes and supports policies and practices that promote substance 
abuse prevention such as Troy Community Coalition’s programs: Operation Medicine Cabinet, Parents Who 
Host Lose the Most, and Project Sticker Shock; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy is a community which recognizes that substance abuse prevention efforts are most successful 
when understood and initiated across all communities and where a comprehensive system monitors indicators of 
community attitudes, conditions and alcohol, tobacco and other drug patterns; and 
 
WHEREAS, Troy is a community where a variety of alcohol, tobacco and other drug-free activities are available to 
all such as Celebrity Night Dinner, Interfaith Prayer Breakfast, Rochester Villas Summer Camp, Spring Break Troy 
Style and Youth Rock ‘N Bowl; and  
 
WHEREAS, Troy is a community where training is provided to develop the skills necessary to prevent the abuse of 
alcohol, tobacco and other drugs such as Seven Habits of Highly Effective Teens, Tar Wars, Teens Taking Action, 
Training for Intervention Procedures, Choose Wisely and Teens Against Tobacco Use; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Community Coalition recently appointed Nancy Morrison, MA, LLP, CPS as the new 
Executive Director to carry on its mission and goals for the comprehensive community prevention plan. Nancy aims 
to carry forward the legacies of past executive director Ann Comiskey and founding director Mary Ann Solberg;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby congratulate the Troy 
Community Coalition on their 20th Anniversary and the recent appointment of Executive Director Nancy 
Morrison and recognizes the Coalition’s positive impact upon our community; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation and 
celebration of the Troy Community Coalition on this important 20th Anniversary milestone. 
 
Presented this 17th day of October 2011 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
C-01c



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          October 17, 2011                    
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for 

Dialogue Marketing, Inc. – 300 E. Big Beaver 
 
 
Background: 
 
  Dialogue Marketing, Inc., is expanding their operations in Troy at 300 E. Big Beaver.   As part of 
their expansion, they intend to purchase machinery and equipment valued at $2,843,362.00.  They 
will also add 150 new jobs to the 330 existing jobs they have in Troy.  They are asking for Personal 
Property Tax Abatement, which they qualify for under City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173 
(attached).  
 
  The Industrial Facility Exemption Certificate (IFEC) would be for eight (8) years. 
 
  In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District must first be established, as the City 
Council has not designated all non-residential areas to be IDD’s.  This is the reason for the back to 
back Public Hearings. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
  The projected amount of the investment is $2,843,362.00.  Over the eight (8) year life of the 
abatement, the estimated total taxes would be $107,817.06, of which $34,488.38 would be City 
Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $53,908.53, of which $17,244.19 
would be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
E-01



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
  City Council goal;    
 

Attract and retain business investment, including:  
   Clearly articulate an economic investment plan. 
   Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles, 
 
Is met with this abatement. 
  
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the district, 
and granting the tax abatement for the subsequent Public Hearing.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may establish the IDD (and approve the tax abatement).  Or, City Council may choose 
to not establish a district at this site.  In which case, the Council must then deny any tax abatement. 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\DialogueMktg\Memo IDD 10.17.11 









Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
Dialogue Marketing Inc





Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally 
recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information 
represented should be consulted for verification.

2,740

City of Troy Geographical Information Systems - Department of Information Technology

457

Legend

1:

Feet4570 228 Notes
  Enter Map Description

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Ponds and Basins
Streams and Creeks
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2010

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3

licarila
Text Box
Dialogue Marketing, Inc.IDD & IFEC300 E Big Beaver88-20-27-126-02708/10/11



Dialogue Marketing, Inc. 
IDD & IFEC 
300 E Big Beaver, Troy, MI 48083 
88-20-27-126-027 
 
 
Legal Description: 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 27  
FROST SUNNY ACRES  
S 200 FT OF LOT 10,  
S 230 FT OF LOTS 11 & 12, &  
LOTS 13 TO 20 INCL  
EXC N 42 FT TAKEN FOR RD, ALSO  
LOTS 1 TO 18 INCL &  
LOTS 67 TO 102 INCL &  
ALL OF VAC ROYALDALE AVE,  
ALL OF VAC TALBOT ST &  
VAC N 50 FT OF SOPERTON AVE  
ADJ TO SAME OF  
'BEAVER HEIGHTS' SUB  
01/14/85 FR 001 TO 026 INCL, 
BLK 101-010 TO 015 INCL &  
-038 TO 054 INCL & 059, &  
BLK 103-007 TO 011 INCL &  
-017 TO 021 INCL 



Market Value 2,843,362 2,530,592 1,923,250 1,288,578 773,147 417,499 204,575 92,059 38,665
50% of Value 1,421,681 1,265,296 961,625 644,289 386,573 208,750 102,287 46,029 19,332

Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Depreciation 0.8900 0.7600 0.6700 0.6000 0.5400 0.4900 0.4500 0.4200

Taxable Value 1,265,296 961,625 644,289 386,573 208,750 102,287 46,029 19,332

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $746.52 $567.36 $380.13 $228.08 $123.16 $60.35 $27.16 $11.41
County 4.64610 $5,878.69 $4,467.81 $2,993.43 $1,796.06 $969.87 $475.24 $213.86 $89.82

Zoo 0.10000 $126.53 $96.16 $64.43 $38.66 $20.87 $10.23 $4.60 $1.93
Int Schools 3.36900 $4,262.78 $3,239.71 $2,170.61 $1,302.37 $703.28 $344.61 $155.07 $65.13
Comm Coll 1.58440 $2,004.74 $1,523.60 $1,020.81 $612.49 $330.74 $162.06 $72.93 $30.63

State Ed 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
School Op 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.70000 $5,946.89 $4,519.64 $3,028.16 $1,816.89 $981.12 $480.75 $216.34 $90.86

Hold Harmless 5.03810 $6,374.69 $4,844.76 $3,245.99 $1,947.59 $1,051.70 $515.33 $231.90 $97.40
Admin 0.14990 $189.66 $144.14 $96.58 $57.95 $31.29 $15.33 $6.90 $2.90

City 9.49000 $12,007.66 $9,125.82 $6,114.30 $3,668.58 $1,981.03 $970.71 $436.82 $183.46
Total 29.66750 $37,538.17 $28,529.01 $19,114.43 $11,468.66 $6,193.08 $3,034.61 $1,365.57 $573.54

Total Taxes 8 Yrs $107,817.06
Total City Taxes 8 Yrs $34,488.38

50% Total Taxes 8 Yrs $53,908.53
50% Total City Taxes 8 yrs $17,244.19
2% Total City 8 Yrs $344.88

 
 

Application Fee (2% total c
Net Total City Taxes Abated
Net Total Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
Dialogue Marketing, Inc.

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application



licarila
Text Box



licarila
Text Box

licarila
Text Box





CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

I-4 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement Policy 
 
Resolution #2010-08-173 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Kerwin   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the tax base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) encouraging 
expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities, and (g) encouraging attractive, 
viable building sites and (h) enhancing our economic development tools to attract and 
retain businesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, 
empowers cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax 
abatements for eligible properties established by the Act;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS the 
following minimum criteria, as authorized by the Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 
No. 198):  
 

1.  An Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) tax abatement shall not be 
granted until there is compliance with MCL 207.559; and  
 

2.  Any real and/or personal property tax abatement at a minimum must be revenue 
neutral to the City of Troy.  

 
3.  Leasehold property shall not qualify for an IFEC tax abatement unless applicant 

is responsible for payment of the property taxes, and can demonstrate timely 
payment of property taxes upon the City’s request; and 

 
4.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued for a period or term exceeding 12 

years; and 
 

5.  An IFEC tax abatement shall not be issued unless an Applicant will create more 
than 10 jobs and/or has a personal property investment of at least $750,000.00, 
and/or owns the underlying real property or has a lease for the underlying 
property for a minimum term of 5 years, as long as two of the three criteria are 
satisfied. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the use of 
the following matrix to calculate the length of an IFEC tax abatement, where the 
increase in the number of jobs created will increase the term of the IFEC abatement, 
and similarly the increase in the personal property investment and the ownership/lease 
conditions on the real property will increase the term of the IFEC abatement: 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES  August 16, 2010 
 

 

Tax Abatement Matrix for Real and Personal Property 

Job Creation Building Terms 
RP and/or PP 

Investment 
10 - 24 1 year Own 4 years  $ 750,000  1 year 
 
25 - 49 2 years Lease    $ 2,000,000  2 years 
 
50 - 99 3 years 5 year 1 Year  $ 5,000,000  3 years 
 
100 - 149 4 years 6 - 9 year 2 years  $ 10,000,000  4 years 
 
150 - 199 5 years 10 + year 4 years  $ 20,000,000  5 years 
 
200 + 6 years         

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the 
implementation of an application fee equal to 2% of the estimated personal property 
taxes abated under the terms of the IFEC tax abatement, or the actual costs of 
processing the application, whichever is less, and the City of Troy will not charge or 
collect any other fees for the application, in keeping with MCL 207.555 (3).  
 
Yes:  Schilling, Beltramini, Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater  
No:  Howrylak  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

licarila
Rectangle

licarila
Rectangle

licarila
Rectangle



August 10, 2011

To: State Tax Commission
P. O. Box 30471
Lansing, MI  48909-7971

From: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor

Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC

  This affidavit attests to the fact that the City of Troy has charged
an application fee in the amount of $344.88, equal to 2% of the
estimated abated City taxes for the life of the exemption
for Dialogue Marketing, Inc., 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI.  48083.
 

  Further, no other fee or concession has been charged or accepted
in regards to this application, or consideration thereof.

Signed:  Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor Dated:



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between Dialogue Marketing, Inc., (“Company”) and 
the City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public 
Act 198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), Dialogue Marketing, Inc., understands that through 
its investment of $2,843,362.00 and its qualification for Michigan 
Economic Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its 
investment of the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually 
investing in and benefiting from this economic development project, and 
furthermore, agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is 8 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2021, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2013, Dialogue Marketing, Inc., will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) Dialogue Marketing, Inc., agrees to remain within the City of 

Troy for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) 
abatement in order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless 
permission for relocation is granted by the City Council of the 
City of Troy. 

 
Dialogue Marketing, Inc., further understands that if it 
chooses to leave the City of Troy without permission for 
relocation prior to the end of the term of the IFT, the City 
Council of the City of Troy has the right to recapture from 
the Company the total amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  Dialogue Marketing, Inc., understands that the City of Troy 

may reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or 
recover from the Company, the amount of taxes which were 
abated if the project has not been completed, expenditures 
made, as represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 



 
 
5.)  Dialogue Marketing, Inc., agrees that it will operate the 

Project in accordance with all applicable Federal, State and 
Local laws or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, 
outside storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water 
quality, noise control, other environmental regulations, and all 
of the terms and conditions of any Consent Judgment 
governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  M. Aileen Bittner                         (date) 
  City Clerk 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, October 17, 2011  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), the granting of 

an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, at the 

following location: 

 

88-20-27-126-027   300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 27 part of NE 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
        
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
DIALOGUE MARKETING 
Attn: PATRICK MURPHY 
3252 UNIVERSITY 
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326 
  

PLANTE MORAN CRESA 
Attn:  BENJAMIN R SMITH 
26300 NORTHWESTERN HWY  
SOUTHFIELD MI  48076 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



E-01   Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) at 300 E. Big 
Beaver 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2011- 
Moved by 
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development 
District (IDD) for property known as 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel #88-20-
27-126-027, in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to 
forward a copy of this resolution to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. 
Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Date:          October 17, 2011                   
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Public Hearing for the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 

Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 
  Dialogue Marketing, Inc, is expanding their operations in Troy at 300 E. Big Beaver.   As part of their 
expansion, they intend to purchase machinery and equipment valued at $2,843,362.00.  They will 
also add 150 new jobs to the 330 existing jobs they have in Troy.  They are asking for Personal 
Property Tax Abatement, which they qualify for under City Council Policy Resolution #2010-08-173  
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 
   The projected amount of the investment is $2,843,362.00.  Over the eight (8) year life of the 
abatement, the estimated total taxes would be $107,817.06, of which $34,488.38 would be City 
Taxes. 
 
  A 50% abatement amounts to a total savings to the taxpayer of $53,908.53, of which $17,244.19 
would be abated City taxes.  
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
  The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
E-02



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
  The application is in compliance with City Council Tax Abatement Policy Resolution #2010-08-173. 
 
  City Council goal;    
 

Attract and retain business investment, including:  
   Clearly articulate an economic investment plan. 
   Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles, 
 
Is met with this abatement. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
  Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend granting the tax 
abatement.   
 
Options: 
 
  City Council may approve the tax abatement.  Or, City Council may choose not to grant the 
abatement.  In which case, the Petitioner may appeal that decision to the State Tax Commission 
(STC). 
 
 
Nl/nl H:IFT\DialogueMktg\Memo IFEC 10.17.11 



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, October 17, 2011  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD), the granting of 

an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, at the 

following location: 

 

88-20-27-126-027   300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 27 part of NE 1/4 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
        
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
TROY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
MARK RAJTER 
4400 LIVERNOIS 
TROY MI 48098-4799 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
OAKLAND INTERMEDIATE 
SCHOOLS 
2111 PONTIAC LAKE 
WATERFORD MI 48328 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY EQUALIZATION 
DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
DIALOGUE MARKETING 
Attn: PATRICK MURPHY 
3252 UNIVERSITY 
AUBURN HILLS  MI  48326 
  

PLANTE MORAN CRESA 
Attn:  BENJAMIN R SMITH 
26300 NORTHWESTERN HWY  
SOUTHFIELD MI  48076 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



                                      E-02 
E - 02  Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate   

(IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. – 300 E. Big Beaver 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution # 2011- 
Moved by: 
Seconded by: 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on October 
17,  2011, established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 300 E. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-27-126-027; and 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by Dialogue Marketing, Inc., for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
48083, for Eight (8) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the City Council, on October 17, 2011,  
held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the possibility that 
the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc., at 
300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083 may have the effect of substantially impeding the operation of 
the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the aggregate SEV of real and personal property exempt from ad valorem taxes 
within the City of Troy, after granting this certificate will not exceed 5% of an amount equal to the 
sum of the SEV of the City of Troy, plus the SEV of real and personal property thus exempted; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE 
GRANTING of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc., 
at 300 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of 
Troy or the other taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of 
Troy, or the other taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the application to for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc., Inc., at 300 E. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 48083, Parcel # 88-20-27-126-027, for personal property for a term of eight 
(8) years, after completion, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between 
the City of Troy and Dialogue Marketing, Inc., and the payment of the fees in accordance with 
Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and Dialogue Marketing, Inc., a copy of which 
shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED TO COMPLETE the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 



 
 
Date October 12, 2011 

 
TO: Mayor Schilling and City Council 

 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
 
 

SUBJECT: Reconsideration of and Amendments to I-01b Appointments to Boards and 
Committees – City Council Nominations 

  
 
In order to correct term expiration dates in the nominations to the Charter Revision 
Committee, the Liquor Advisory Committee and the Parks and Recreation Board, City 
Council is advised to Reconsider the Resolution #2011-10-227, Moved by Mayor Pro Tem 
Kerwin, Seconded by Council Member McGinnis, from the October 3, 2011, City Council 
Meeting.  
 
Should the Reconsideration motion pass, the motion to Amend and the Amended motion 
are presented for consideration as well. 
 
City Council Appointments to the Charter Revision Committee, the Liquor Advisory 
Committee and the Parks and Recreation Board can be considered immediately afterwards. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  IITTEEMM  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-01b



I-01 Appointments to Boards and Committees 

b) City Council Appointments: Animal Control Appeal Board; Charter Revision 
Committee; Election Commission; Historic District Commission; Liquor 
Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks and Recreation 
Board; Personnel Board; Traffic Committee; Zoning Board of Appeals 

1) Resolution to be Reconsidered: 
 

Resolution #2011-10-227 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by McGinnis  

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City 
Council Meeting for action: 

 
Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
  

Patrick Carolan Term Expires 09/30/2013 
  

Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Gretchen Waters, Steve Toth Term Expires 09/30/2014 
 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Shirley Kanoza Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Bob Berk and Jerry Bloom Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
 

Election Commission 
Appointed by Council – (2-Regular & 1-Charter) - 1-Year Term 
 

David Anderson Term Expires 01/31/2012 
  

Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/2012 
 



 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

W. Kent Voigt Term Expires 03/01/2013 
 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Patrick Hall Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

W. Stan Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Dan Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Jesse Pappas Term Expires 07/31/2012 
  

Eunjoo Scherlinck Term Expires 07/31/2012 
 
 

Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Victor Freliga Term Expires 01/31/2014 
 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term 
 

Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 9/30/2013 
 

Tod Gazetti and JoAnn Thompson Term Expires 9/30/2013 
  

Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jeff Stewart Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 
 
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 



Ann Comiskey Term Expires 4/30/2014 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Al Petrulis Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Richard Kilmer Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Peter Ziegenfelder Term Expires 1/31/2014 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term 
 

A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

 
2) Proposed Amendments to Reconsidered Resolution #2011-10-227: 
 
 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 

Patrick Carolan Term Expires 09/30/2013 
  

Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Gretchen Waters, Steve Toth Term Expires 09/30/2014 
 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Shirley Kanoza Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  



Bob Berk, Jerry Bloom Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
 

Election Commission 
Appointed by Council – (2-Regular & 1-Charter) - 1-Year Term 
 

David Anderson Term Expires 01/31/2012 
  

Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/2012 
 
 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

W. Kent Voigt Term Expires 03/01/2013 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Patrick Hall Term Expires 01/31/2013 
  

W. Stan Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Dan Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Jesse Pappas Term Expires 07/31/2012 
  

Eunjoo Scherlinck Term Expires 07/31/2012 
 
 

Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Victor Freliga Term Expires 01/31/2014 
 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term 
 

Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 9/30/2013 
 

Tod Gazetti and JoAnn Thompson Term Expires 9/30/2013 



  
Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 

  
Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 

  
Jeff Stewart Term Expires 9/30/2013 

  
Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 

 
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Ann Comiskey Term Expires 4/30/2014 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Al Petrulis Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Richard Kilmer Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Peter Ziegenfelder Term Expires 1/31/2014 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term 
 

A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 



BittnerA
Text Box
I-04

















 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  October 12, 2011                            
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Winter Maintenance Agreement, Road Commission for Oakland County 
 
 
Background 
 
Since 2001 the City of Troy has serviced all county roads in Troy for snow and ice control.  The 
amount of compensation to the City has not increased since the 2007/2008 Winter Maintenance 
Contract, which does not cover costs but does provide for a higher level of service by the City of Troy. 
 
Attached are copies of the proposed 2011/2012 Winter Maintenance Agreement between the Road 
Commission for Oakland County and the City of Troy.  
 
It is evident that this agreement is beneficial to all parties with regards to the level and timeliness of 
service.  The City is able to administer Snow & Ice Control in a more timely and uniform manner to it’s 
high priority roads, while allowing the County to concentrate on it’s highest priority roads, I-75 and M-
59.    
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management is in agreement with the measured lane mile figures as presented, and with the 
calculations used to determine the level of compensation for each road configuration; therefore we 
recommend that the proposed maintenance agreement be approved with funding that is attached to 
the road segment selected by City Council. 
 
Fund Availability 
 
Funds shall be made available in the operating budgets of the Streets Division for snow and ice 
control for county roads. 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality  
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:  
            
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 TR/S: Miller’s Review/ Agenda 09.23.11 RB: Winter Maintenance Agreement RCOC 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-05





















CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian Chapel gave the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to 
the Flag was given. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, October 3, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Schilling called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mayor Pro Tem Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 
a) City Manager’s Presentation of the Performance Dashboard Required by the State 

of Michigan  
b) I/ACT Presentation – Linda Shears 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 2012 Application and Public 
Hearing 

 
Resolution #2011-10-224 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
Mayor Schilling OPENED the Public Hearing. 
Mayor Schilling CLOSED the Public Hearing after receiving no public comment. 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County is preparing an Annual Action Plan to meet application 
requirements for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program, and other 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Oakland County has requested CDBG-eligible projects from participating 
communities for inclusion in the Action Plan; and 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has duly advertised and conducted a public hearing on October 3, 
2011 for the purpose of receiving public comments regarding the proposed use of FY 2012 
Community Development Block Grant funds (CDBG) in the approximate amount of 
$143,525.00; and  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy found that the following projects meet the federal objectives of the 
CDBG program and are prioritized by the community as high priority need. 
 
Account Number  Project Name   Amount 
172160-732170  Public Services (Yard Services) $  21,528.00 
172170-730744  Flood Drain Improvements  $121,997.00 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy CDBG application is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to be submitted to Oakland County for inclusion in Oakland County’s Annual 
Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and that the Mayor is 
hereby AUTHORIZED to execute all documents, agreements, or contracts which result from 
this application to Oakland County. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Walters, Roger Spoke about traffic issues on Boyd Street. 
Schepke, Gordon Spoke about damaging or removing political campaign signs. 
Peters, Richard Spoke about various topics. 
Savage, James Commended and thanked Council Member Howrylak for his years of 

dedicated service on City Council. 
DeBacker, Deborah Spoke about transparency and campaign finances. 
 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations:  
 
a) Mayoral Nominations 
 
Resolution #2011-10-225 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
persons to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action:  
 

Downtown Development Authority 
Appointed by Mayor (13-Regular) – 4 Year Term 
 

Ernest Reschke (At Large) Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Douglas Schroeder (At Large) Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Ward Randall (In District) Term Expires 09/30/2014 
 
 

Economic Development Corporation 
Appointed by Mayor (9-Regular) – 6 Year Term 
 

Charles Salgat Term Expires 04/30/2016 
  

Mark Miller Term Expires 04/30/2017 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: Fleming, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
b) City Council Nominations 
 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 

 Term Expires 09/30/2012 
  

Patrick Carolan Term Expires 09/30/2013 
  

Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Gretchen Waters, Steve Toth Term Expires 09/30/2014 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

 
Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Shirley Kanoza Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Bob Berk Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
 

Election Commission 
Appointed by Council – (2-Regular & 1-Charter) - 1-Year Term 
 

David Anderson Term Expires 01/31/2012 
  

Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/2012 
 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

W. Kent Voigt Term Expires 03/01/2013 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Patrick Hall Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

W. Stan Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Dan Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Jesse Pappas Term Expires 07/31/2012 
  

Eunjoo Scherlinck Term Expires 07/31/2012 
 
 

Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Victor Freliga Term Expires 01/31/2014 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term 
 

Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 9/30/2013 
 

Tod Gazetti Term Expires 9/30/2013 
  

Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jeff Stewart Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 
 
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Ann Comiskey Term Expires 4/30/2014 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Al Petrulis Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Richard Kilmer Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Peter Ziegenfelder Term Expires 1/31/2014 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term 
 

A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
 
Resolution to Amend to Add Nominations to Charter Revision Committee and Parks & 
Recreation Board 
 
Resolution #2011-10-226 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Shirley Kanoza Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Bob Berk and Jerry Bloom Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term 
 

Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 9/30/2013 
 

Tod Gazetti and JoAnn Thompson Term Expires 9/30/2013 
  

Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jeff Stewart Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Vote on Resolution I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: b) City Council 
Nominations 
 
Resolution #2011-10-227 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council  (5-Regular) - 3-Year Terms 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

 Term Expires 09/30/2012 
  

Patrick Carolan Term Expires 09/30/2013 
  

Jayne Saeger Term Expires 09/30/2014 
  

Gretchen Waters, Steve Toth Term Expires 09/30/2014 
 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Shirley Kanoza Term Expires 04/30/2013 
  

Bob Berk and Jerry Bloom Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Mark Solomon Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

Cynthia Wilsher Term Expires 04/30/2014 
 
 

Election Commission 
Appointed by Council – (2-Regular & 1-Charter) - 1-Year Term 
 

David Anderson Term Expires 01/31/2012 
  

Timothy Dewan Term Expires 01/31/2012 
 
 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

W. Kent Voigt Term Expires 03/01/2013 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Patrick Hall Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

W. Stan Godlewski Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Dan Ukrainec Term Expires 01/31/2014 
  

Jesse Pappas Term Expires 07/31/2012 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

Eunjoo Scherlinck Term Expires 07/31/2012 
 
 

Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Victor Freliga Term Expires 01/31/2014 
 
 

Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) - 3 Year Term; (1-Troy School Board) - 1-Year Term 
 

Kathleen Fejes Term Expires 9/30/2013 
 

Tod Gazetti and JoAnn Thompson Term Expires 9/30/2013 
  

Meaghan Kovacs Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jan Zikakis Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Jeff Stewart Term Expires 9/30/2014 
  

Gary Hauff Term Expires 7/31/2012 
 
 

Personnel Board 
Appointed by Council – (5-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Ann Comiskey Term Expires 4/30/2014 
 
 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council – (7-Regular) – 3-Year Term 
 

Al Petrulis Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Richard Kilmer Term Expires 1/31/2014 
  

Peter Ziegenfelder Term Expires 1/31/2014 
 
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) - 3-Year Term 
 

A. Allen Kneale Term Expires 04/30/2014 
  

David Lambert Term Expires 04/30/2014 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Ordinance Revisions in Accordance with Troy City Council Resolution Requesting 

Expunging of Boards and Committees 
 
Resolution #2011-10-228 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
a) Resolution to Amend Chapter 9 – Troy Public Library 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 9, Troy Public Library, of the 
Troy City Code in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Administration, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Resolution to Strike Chapter 12 – Historical Commission 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby STRIKES in totality Chapter 12, Historical 
Commission, of the Troy City Code in accordance with the proposal prepared by City 
Administration, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
c) Resolution to Amend Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Chapter 13, Historic Preservation, of the 
Troy City Code in accordance with the proposal prepared by City Administration, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Fleming, Howrylak 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-10-229 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-10-229-J-2a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of September 26, 2011 
 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions  
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Award to Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 

Ice Melt Compounds 
 
Resolution #2011-10-229-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide one (1) year 
requirements of ice melt compounds with an option to renew for one (1) additional year for the 
City of Troy and participating MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Purchasing 
Cooperative Members to the lowest bidder meeting specifications for both proposals A) and B) - 
Washington Elevator Co, Inc of Washington, MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened September 21, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with the contract expiring October 31, 2012. 
 
J-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – September 21, 2011 
 
Resolution #2011-10-229-J-5 

Item 3: Changing Existing YIELD Sign to STOP Sign – Southbound Milburn at Prescott 
 
RESOLVED, That the Traffic Committee recommends changing the existing YIELD sign on 
southbound Milburn at Prescott to a STOP sign. 

Item 4: Changing Existing YIELD Sign to STOP Sign – Northbound Milburn at Brinston 
 
RESOLVED, That the Traffic Committee recommends changing the existing YIELD sign on 
northbound Milburn at Brinston to a STOP sign. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 
 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Council Referrals: 

a) Lifelong Learning Committee as Advanced by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin 
 
Resolution #2011-10-230 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
WHEREAS, Troy Futures/Vision 2020 Lifetime Learning Committee recommended the 
formation of a committee to achieve a preferred future; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Lifelong Learning Committee would be responsible for determining community 
lifetime learning needs, coordinating learning opportunity content and communicating 
opportunities at the Troy Library to people who live and work in Troy; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Lifelong Learning Committee would ensure that the Library’s learning 
opportunities are provided in user-friendly formats compatible with the skills and resources of 
users and adapt to change as needed; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Lifelong Learning Committee would have wide community representation of 
key community stakeholders who meet as needed with the Library Director to ensure the 
realization and utilization of a superior 21st century library; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Lifelong Learning Committee would include representatives from public and 
private schools within Troy; colleges and institutions of higher education; PTA, PTO and 
Boosters; Student Councils; Troy Chamber of Commerce; I/ACT; Troy businesses; Troy 
Library, Recreation, Historic Village, and Nature Center; Friends of the Troy Public Library; 
Service clubs; and should include ethnic and age diversity and library and non-library 
cardholders; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Lifelong Learning Committee’s responsibilities include those iterated by the 
Lifetime Learning Task Force and any other responsibilities deemed important by the Library 
Director, and will be a vital conduit for community input; and   
 
WHEREAS, The Committee should be involved in the strategic planning process and 
subsequent implementation of the plan, and continue to work with the Library Director 
afterward to provide stakeholder input and community involvement; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

 
WHEREAS, The Library Director will report committee recommendations and achievements to 
Council on a quarterly basis;  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS staff to establish a 
Lifelong Learning Committee which fulfills the goals described herein. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Schilling announced that the Troy Police Department Pistol Team won the State 
Governors Cup for the 9th consecutive year. 
 
Mayor Schilling announced that she represented the community by attending William 
Beaumont Hospital-Troy 11th Annual Silent Witness Commemorative. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin applauded City Council for meeting City Council Vision Statement and 
Goals #3 – Build a Sense of Community.   
 
Council Member Beltramini commented on the Traffic. 
 
Council Member Beltramini thanked Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin for her hard work on Item L-1 a) 
Lifelong Learning Committee as Advanced by Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin. 
 
Council Member Beltramini commented on AARP tax service for seniors. 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Traffic Committee-Final-June 15, 2011 
b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final (Revised)-June 21, 2011  
c) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final-August 16, 2011 

Noted and Filed 
 

N-2 Department Reports: None Submitted 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter Appreciation from Jeff Williams to Gary Bowers, Thanking the Planning 

Department and Ordinance Enforcement Inspectors for Their Quick Response 
Noted and Filed 

 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT October 3, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Company 
Case No. U-16855 

Noted and Filed 
 

The meeting RECESSED at 9:15 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:25 PM. 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  Economic and Community Development Division Update 
 
O-2  IMLA/ICMA Report – Troy City Attorney’s Office 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:35 PM. 
 
 

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

October 10, 2011 
 

TO:   John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gertrude Paraskevin, IT Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (NIPA)  

Disk Based Backup System 
 

Background 
The City has always utilized a tape based backup system as the primary backup-and-restore medium for off-
site data storage.  This hardware is located in City Hall and backs up all systems in the City incrementally each 
day and then fully each weekend.  Over the course of a week approximately 14 tapes are utilized to 
accommodate upwards of 5.35 terabytes of backup data which continues to grow each week.   
 
Although this system has served the city well, it is very labor intensive to manage, and relatively slow.  Every 
week the tape jukebox must be emptied and tapes are sent to our off site location at the DPW.  A new set of 
tapes are received and reloaded for the next week’s backups.  This process involves the IT Department and 
the Motor Pool who manages the offsite tapes.  As our storage needs expand so do the number of tapes 
required and the storage space to house those tapes.  Additionally, throughout the week IT routinely receives 
requests to restore files from backup.  If that backup is off-site the restore is delayed as it necessitates retrieval 
of tapes from DPW. 
 
Tape-based backup solutions have been the default medium for offsite storage for the last 50 years. However, 
increasing data storage needs, shrinking backup windows, the need to recover critical applications quickly, and 
declining disk costs have combined to push tape out of the spotlight in favor of disk-based solutions.   
 
There are several advantages to a disk-based solution: 

 Faster restores. All backups will be available immediately on-line.  No need to search for the 
appropriate tapes.  Also the nature of tapes is that they are sequential.  You have to search through the 
tape to find the files needed, whereas disks are randomly accessible allowing quicker access to files. 

 Greater reliability.  Tapes are notorious for failures.  Statistically a tape recovery can fail 10%-70% of 
the time.  Disks in a RAID configuration are much more reliable and resilient to failure.  In addition, they 
are self contained with less sensitivity to environmental conditions and have less moving parts that can 
jam or breakdown. 

 Easier management.  Requires no physical access and much less human intervention to manage.  
Nothing has to be sent off site or reloaded on a regular basis.  Simply monitoring success of the 
backups and storage capacity are all that are required. This also allows the device to be placed in a 
location such that files are immediately backed up to an off-site area for disaster recovery purposes.  

 Data de-duplication.  This is a data compression technique offered by most disk-based backup systems 
that reduces the amount of storage needed for a given set of files by eliminating redundant data.  This 
allows for much more efficient use of the hardware. 

 
It is the intention of the IT Department to place this device at the Troy School District Service Center to 
establish an offsite server/data recovery location.  The City currently has a rack in that location containing 
equipment that connects the DPW, the Police/Fire Training Center and City Hall via fiber optic cable. This  
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-04a



 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

October 10, 2011 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Disk Based Backup System 
 
would simply be additional hardware in that same rack.  The TSD Service Center would serve as an ideal 
recovery site.  The rack is already in an established controlled environment, and there are multiple pathways to 
the data in the event of a disaster.   

 
Recommendation  
City management recommends the current 6-year old tape backup system be replaced with an EXAGRID 
EX5000 disk-based system from CDW-G through the NIPA technology solutions contract #083052-01 
competitively solicited and awarded by Tucson, AZ for a cost of $21,800.00 with an annual recurring 
maintenance cost of approximately $3,000.00.   Purchase of this system would eliminate annual maintenance 
on the tape based system of $1,135.00 resulting in a net increase in annual maintenance of $1,865.00. 

Fund Availability 
Funds are available in the Information Technology budget for the 2011/2012 fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 - Disk Based Backup System10-11.doc 



OE400SPS

QUOTE NO. ACCOUNT NO. DATE

CGVT047 6360514 8/17/2011

BILL TO: 
GERTRUDE PARASKEVIN  
500 W BIG BEAVER RD  
 
 
Accounts Payable 
TROY , MI 48084-5254  
 
 
Customer Phone #248.524.3416 

SHIP TO: 
CITY OF TROY  
Attention To: GERTRUDE PARASKEVIN 
500 W BIG BEAVER RD  
 
 
TROY , MI 48084-5254  
Contact: STEVE 
POIRIER      248.680.7235  
              
Customer P.O. # EXAGRID EX5000 

 
  

  
 
  

ACCOUNT MANAGER SHIPPING METHOD TERMS EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE

JEFF JONES 866.668.9487 Drop Ship Common Carrier Master Card / VISA GOVT-EXEMPT 

QTY ITEM NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1 2321316 EXAGRID EX5000 RAW13TB W/GRID&REPL 
      Mfg#: EXD-EX-13TB-DB 
      Contract: National IPA Tech Solutions 
      083052-01 

21,800.00 21,800.00

1 2321317 EXAGRID EX5000 1Y 8X5 SUPPORT 
      Mfg#: EXD-EX-13TB-1YR-8X5 
      Contract: National IPA Tech Solutions 
      083052-01 

3,000.00 3,000.00

SUBTOTAL 
FREIGHT 

TAX  
 

24,800.00 
0.00  
0.00  

 

24,800.00

CDW Government 
230 North Milwaukee Ave.  
Vernon Hills, IL 60061  
Phone: 847.371.5000 Fax: 312-752-3557

Please remit payment to: 
CDW Government  
75 Remittance Drive  
Suite 1515 
Chicago, IL 60675-1515 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
October 12, 2011                
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Tim Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Public Works Consolidation Renovations 
 
 
Background 
 
The ICMA report recommended the consolidation of the Parks and Building Operations Divisions into 
the Public Works Department. This has been incorporated organizationally but staff has not been 
brought together into the Public Works facility.  In order to bring staff together to most effectively 
interact, communicate, and assist each other it is important we provide suitable office and meeting 
space. This will require some renovation to the existing Public Works facility. 
 
To accomplish this we are moving our sign shop operations to the Parks Maintenance building behind 
the main DPW facility. The space vacated will then be converted to office space as illustrated in 
Attachment A. This work will be completed through a combination of in-house and contract work. All 
office furniture needs are being filled with current city materials as shown in Attachment B. 
 
The converted office space will contain stations for 5 Leaders, 2 Field Supervisors, 2 Division 
Supervisors, 1 Project Manager and 1 Cross Connection Inspector.  This will allow all management 
and office staff to be brought into the Public Works facility with adequate meeting, records and office 
space. 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management requests approval and authorization to complete the renovations to the Public 
Works facility in accordance with the proposed floor plan, Attachment A and detailed pricing, 
Attachment B.  
 
Fund Availability  
 
Funds have been budgeted and are available in the Water and Sewer Capital and Public Works 
Capital accounts for an estimated total cost of $43,910.00. 
 
 
 
 
TR\ef/S:Richnak Agenda Items\10.17.11 – Public Works Consolidation Renovations 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-05







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date:              October 10, 2011 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
 
Subject: Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Sanitary Sewer Easement and Acceptance of a  
  Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement – Sidwell #88-20-32-200-032, Cambridge Crossings  
  Shops #2, LLC 
 
 
 
Background 
 
As part of a redevelopment project located in the Cambridge Crossings Shopping Mall (WalMart and 
Marshall’s), located in Section 32 on the south side of Fifteen Mile at Maplelawn the Engineering Department 
has received proposed plans to redesign a portion of the public utilities to accommodate a reconfiguration of 
the existing facilities.   
 
The City Engineering department has reviewed all proposed plans and has no objection to the abandonment 
of part of the existing sanitary sewer easement previously granted to the City and recorded with Oakland 
County Register of Deeds in Liber 21432, Page 290.  
 
In its’ place, the Engineering department has received a new sanitary sewer easement granted by 
Cambridge Crossings Shops #2, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-32-200-032 to the City of 
Troy. 
 
 
Recommendations 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the request for abandonment of a portion of an existing sanitary 
sewer easement by way of a quit claim deed to the current property owner. In addition, staff recommends 
that City Council accept the attached easement, consistent with our policy of accepting easements for 
development and improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LAF/G\MEMOSTOMAYORANDCOUNCIL\Vacationofeasmt-CambridgeCrossings3-28-11.doc 
 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-06





















 
October 13, 2011 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
  
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
Kurt Bovensiep, Superintendent Parks, Streets, & Drains 

 
SUBJECT:  Purchase of Pre-Cast Concrete Restroom – Milverton Park 
  
Background 
On October 12, 2011, bids were received for one (1) new Pre-cast Concrete Restroom Building at Milverton Park at 
the general location described in the Parks Master Plan.  Eighty-eight (88) vendors were notified via the MITN 
website along with forty calls made to qualified vendors across the United States.  Unfortunately no bid responses 
were received.   
 
ITB-COT 11-21 for one (1) new Pre-cast Concrete Restroom Building at Milverton Park was competitively bid 
as required by City Charter and Code.  As no bids were received, the City contacted the manufacturer of the 
product directly to obtain a price quote for the product specified in the bid document.    
 
The development of Milverton Park was accomplished using Community Development Block Grant (CBDG) 
funds. The Pre-Cast Restroom facility qualifies as an improvement to the park to use these funds. The 
maintenance cost to operate this facility will be augmented from the closure of the restrooms at the Troy Farm 
beginning spring of 2012. It is not expected that the new restroom facility at Milverton Park will increase 
maintenance time or expenses because of the Troy Farm restroom facility closure. Furthermore, the Troy 
Farm restroom facility serviced approximately 80 individuals, where Milverton Park can service this amount 
daily, resulting in a better use of maintenance funds.  
 
Milverton Park has used CBDG funds to install pathways around the park including a pathway to the abutting 
senior housing, benches, installation of a parking lot, climbing rocks and swings, a picnic shelter, and 
installation of Life Trails outdoor senior exercising stations. The restroom facility will provide park patrons the 
ability to enjoy the park amenities for a longer period of time. 
 
Recommendation 
City management and the Department of Public Works requests authorization to purchase the Denali Pre-Cast 
Restroom Facility from the manufacturer of the product, CXT, Inc of Spokane, Washington for an estimated 
total cost of $61,250.00  
 
The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of properly executed contracts including 
bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 
Funds Availability  
Funds are available in the Parks and Recreation Park Development Section 36 Land Improvements Capital 
Account. 

 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Regular Business - Pre-Cast Restroom10.11.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-07



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 11-21
Opening Date -- 10/12/11 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Reviewed -- 10/13/11 PRECAST RESTROOM BUILDING - MILVERTON PARK

VENDOR NAME:

Check #
Amount

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH ONE (1) NEW PRE-CAST CONCRETE RESTROOM BUILDING INCLUDING DELIVERY AND PLACEMENT 
             ON FOUNDATION AT MILVERTON PARK

Milverton Park Pre-Cast Restroom Building 

                                  Complete for the Sum of:

Product Manufacturer: 
Product Model #:  

COMPLETION DATE:
Calendar days to Complete:  

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
Name
Hours of Operation
24 Hr Phone #

SITE INSPECTION: Y or N
Date

VENDOR QUESTIONNARE:
Attached: Y or N

INSURANCE CAN MEET
CANNOT MEET

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N

TWO FORMS COMPLETED:
Legal Status Y or N
Non-Collusion Y or N

ATTEST:
 Susan Riesterer
 Kurt Bovensiep
 Julie Hamilton _______________________________

Susan Leirstein CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 11-21 Precast Restroom - Milverton Park 

December 21, 2011

NO BIDS RECEIVED



Page 1 of 4

Mailing Address:

CXT Incorporated, an LBFoster Co.
3808 North Sullivan Road Bldg. #7
Spokane Valley, WA 99216

(800) 696-5766Phone:

Fax: (509) 928-8270

Date: 10/12/2011

Quote #:

To:  

4693 Rochester Road

Troy, MI 48085

GZEN900NOL-1

City of Troy

MI-Troy-City of Troy-Milverton ParkRe: 

(248) 524-3410Phone:

Attention: Kurt Bovensiep

Our quotation for the Denali Flush Building building is as follows: Per Building

Denali double flush toilet building with standard simulated ribbed metal roof and board 

and batt with napa valley rock wall texture, three 16-guage galvanized steel doors and 

frames, vitreous china plumbing fixtures (2-lavatories, 2-water closets), two skylights, 

two fast-air hand dryers, two insta-hot hot water heaters, two 3-roll toilet paper holders, 

two exhaust fans, three GFI outlets, three floor drains, two s/s mirrors, ADA grab bars, 

ADA signs, one hose bib in chase area, MI wet stamped drawings and motion controlled 

interior lights and photo cell controlled exterior lights, delivered, offloaded & set on 

customer prepared site in Troy, MI. 

Note: Quote for City of Troy, Milverton Park Project

$61,250.00

Freight

$61,250.00

Freight  FOB Plant Prepaid and Add. FOB: 

Net 30 with Credit Approval. Terms: 

Sales tax not included 

Number of Units: ___ 
Notes: 

This quotation is subject to the conditions on the attached sheet and the 

terms hereof shall constitute the exclusive agreement of the parties and all 

conflicting or additional terms in Buyer’s purchase order or any other such 

documents of Buyer shall have no force or effect.

Accepted this _________________ day of ___________________ 20______

By:___________________________________________ (Customer Name)

 _____________________________________________ (Signed)

L.B. FOSTER COMPANY

By _______________________________________

Gregg Zentarsky

GZentarsky@lbfoster.com



Page 2 of 4GZEN900NOL-1Quote #:

CONDITIONS OF SALE

1. Taxes

rices exclude all Federal/State/Local taxes. Tax will be charged where applicable if customer is unable to provide proof of exemption.

2. Payment Terms

Payment to CXT by the purchaser shall be made net 30 days after the submission of the invoice to the purchaser. Interest at a rate equal to the lower 

of (i) the highest rate permitted by law; or (ii) 1.5% per month will be charged monthly on all unpaid invoices beginning the 35th day (includes 5 day 

grace period) from the date of the invoice. Under no circumstances can a retention be taken and purchaser shall pay the full invoiced amount without 

offset or reduction. These terms are available upon approval of credit. If CXT initiates legal proceeding to collect any unpaid amount, purchaser shall 

be liable for all of CXT’s costs, expenses and attorneys fees associated with such litigation, including the fees and costs of any appeal.

3. Quotation Term

This offer is subject to acceptance within 60 days from the date of this quotation. After that time, prices are subject to change without notice.

4. Drawings

Prices do not include any documentation other than standard drawings, packing lists, and invoices, unless otherwise stated in quote. Special 

documentation, reports, or submittals can be supplied at an additional cost. If additional engineering, engineering seals, state approvals, drawings, or 

insignias are required additional charges may incur.

5. Delivery

Delivery will be scheduled immediately upon receipt of written customer approval of all building submittals, building worksheet(s) and signed 

contract/purchase order. In the event delivery of the buildings ordered is/are not completed within 30 days of the agreed to schedule through no fault 

of CXT, an invoice for the full contract value (excluding shipping and installation costs) will be submitted for payment, the terms of which will be as per 

item 2 in our quotation. Delivery and installation charges will be invoiced at the time of delivery and installation. Should the delivery and installation 

costs increase due to changes in the delivery period, this increase in cost will be added to the price originally quoted, and will be subject to the 

contract payment terms. In the event that the delivery is delayed more than 45 days after the agreed to schedule and through no fault of CXT, then in 

addition to the remedies above, a storage fee of ½% of contract price per month or part of any month will be charged.

6. Fuel Costs

Fuel costs for crane and freight have been quoted at fuel prices furnished at the time of quotation. If at the time of delivery and installation these costs 

have risen, CXT reserves the right to adjust the freight and crane costs to reflect the fuel costs furnished at the time of delivery.

7. Responsibilities of the Customer

A. Stake exact location building is to be set, including orientation.

B. Provide clear and level site, free of overhead and/or underground obstructions.

C. Provide site accessible to normal highway trucks and sufficient area for the crane to install and other equipment to perform the contract 

requirements.

D. Customer shall provide notice in writing of low bridges, roadway width or grade, unimproved roads or any other possible obstacles from State 

highway and/or main county road to site. CXT reserves the right to charge the customer for additional costs incurred for special equipment 

required to perform delivery and installation.

E. Customer is responsible for all permits required.

8. Access to Site

Delivery will be made in normal highway trucks and trailers. If at the time of delivery conditions of access are hazardous or unsuitable for truck 

equipment for any reason, CXT will negotiate extra costs to ensure a safe and quality installation to the chosen site or will agree to an alternative site 

with better access.

To safely offload the facility referred to within this quotation, CXT must have clear and unobstructed access next to the gravel pad or hole where the 

facility will be placed. CXT is not responsible for cracked or damaged roads, driveways, sidewalks or aprons that are in the path of the delivery trucks 

or cranes at the final offloading site. Should CXT be required to obtain a larger crane than quoted due to site amenities or hardscapes, CXT will 

charge the customer the difference between the crane originally quoted, and the one that was hired in order to successfully offload the facility safely 

and efficiently.

9. Installation

A. If the customer opts to have full installation of their new building, CXT will provide a backhoe trailered into the site, and prepare the customer site 

at the marked hole/pad area. The crane will arrive and set up next to the hole/pad. Any  requirements to lift the building over obstacles or not 

having the ability of the crane to be right next to the hole could incur additional charges. The size of the crane varies however most cranes 

require an area of 18’x18’ for their outriggers. Truck(s) carrying the vaults and the building systematically pull up right next to the crane and are 

offloaded onto the site. Any requirements to lift the building over obstacles or not having the ability of the truck to be right next to the crane could 

incur additional charges. Installation crew then performs all necessary excavation, backfill, compaction, site grading, and connection of utilities (if 

applicable).  Please note: additional time and any special equipment needed by the installation crew for unscheduled site work will be billed to the 

customer. This work must be approved by Customer Field Representative by signing the Additional Work Required section on the Building 

Acceptance Form.

B. If the customer opts to prepare the hole, and do earthwork preparation for the site, the customer will move all excess dirt to allow access by the 

crane and semi-truck. The crane will arrive and set up next to the hole/pad. Any requirements to lift the building over obstacles or not having the 

ability of the crane to be right next to the hole could incur additional charges. The size of the crane varies however most cranes require an area 

of 18’x18’ for their outriggers. Truck(s) carrying the vaults and the building systematically pull up right next to the crane and are offloaded onto 



Page 3 of 4GZEN900NOL-1Quote #:

the site. Any requirements to lift the building over obstacles or not having the ability of the truck to be right next to the crane could incur additional 

charges. Customer performs all necessary excavation, backfill, compaction, site grading, connection of utilities (if applicable).

C. If customer opts to self-install their building CXT can provide a drawing of the recommended lifting/rigging arrangement plus the four special 

lifting plates for the buildings itself with a refundable deposit of $1,000.00 payable by credit card only. The customer must return lifting plates 

and hardware to CXT (at customers cost) within 2 weeks (14) days or a $1,000.00 fee will be charged to the customer credit card. Please note: It 

is highly recommended that you use our lifting/rigging arrangements. The CXT arrangements will help prevent damage to the building. CXT will 

not take responsibility for any damage/accidents to the building or workers during the use or non-use of our recommended lifting/rigging 

arrangements.

10. Transportation

Your bulding(s) will be transported from our plant to your installation site via semi-truck with trailer. The length and clearance vary with the style of 

trailer used to accommodate your building model(s) and must be taken into consideration when determining access to site.

If you ordered a(n)....

Cascadian/Rocky Mountain - Requires 1 truck: When shipped in 2-pieces (standard) the building with vault is shipped on a flatbed trailer. The 

length of the tractor-trailer can be up to 75' long. Must have a 14' height clearance to access site.

Gunnison - Requires 1 truck: Shipped with its vault, this building is typically shipped on a step-deck trailer. The length of the tractor-trailer can be up 

to 75' long. Must have 14' height clearance to access site.

Tioga Special - Requires 2 trucks: 1 to transport the building and 1 to transport vaults. The building is typically shipped on a step-deck trailer and 2 

vaults are typically transported on a flatbed trailer. The length of the tractor-trailer can be up to 75' long. Must have 14' height and 14' width clearance 

to access site.

Dbl Cascadian/Dbl Rocky Mountain - Requires 2 trucks: 1 to transport the building and 1 to transport the vaults. The building is typically shipped on 

a dbl-drop or low boy trailer (approximate ground clearance of 4 to 6") and the 2 vaults are typically transported on a flatbed trailer. The length of the 

tractor-trailer can range from 75' to 80'. Must have 14' height and 14' width clearance to access site.

Cortez/Ozark I/Teton/Pioneer - Requires 1 truck: Generally shipped on a step-deck trailer. The length of the tractor-trailer can be up to 75' long. Must 

have a 14' height and 14' width clearance to access site.

Large Flush, Sectional, or Custom Bldgs - 

(Arapahoe/OzarkII/Cheyenne/Montrose/Taos/Rainier/Pomona/Navajo/Malibu/Kodiak/Fontana/Diablo/Denali)

Requires 2-4 trucks, depending on size of building. Each section will be shipped on an RGN trailer (approximate ground clearance of 4 to 6 "). The 

length of the tractor-trailer can range from 80' to 115'. Must have 14' height and 14' width clearance to access site. The Denali model could ship on 

either an RGN trailer or a dbl-drop.

Schweitzer/Mendocino - Requires 1-2 trucks, depending on size of building. Generally shipped on a step-deck trailer. The length of the tractor-trailer 

can be up to 75' long. Must have 14' height and 14' width clearance to access site.

11. CXT Warranty

CXT warrants that all structures sold pursuant hereto will, when delivered, conform to specifications of the building listed on the quote. Structures 

shall be deemed accepted and meeting specifications unless notice identifying the nature of any non-conformity is provided to CXT in writing within 

one (1) year of delivery. It is specifically understood that CXT’s obligation hereunder is for credit or repair only. CXT will repair structural defects 

against materials and workmanship for one (1) year from date of delivery provided CXT is first given the opportunity to inspect said structure. CXT 

warranties all components sold within all structures pursuant here to when delivered within structures. Components deemed accepted and meeting 

specifications shall be warrantied for a period of one (1) year against defects in the materials and/or workmanship from said date of delivery. CXT is 

not responsible for components that are damaged due to misuse, acts of violence, negligence, acts of God, or accidents. Shipping, handling, 

installation or other incidental or consequential costs, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CXT, are not included.

This warranty shall not apply to:

1)  Any goods which have been repaired or altered without CXT’s express written consent, in such a way as in the reasonable judgment of CXT, to 

adversely effect the stability or reliability thereof;

2)  To any goods which have been subject to misuse, negligence, acts of God, or accidents;

3)  To any goods which have not been installed to manufacturer’s specifications and guidelines, improperly maintained, or used outside of the 

specifications for which such goods were designed.

12. Disclaimer of Other Warranties

THE WARRANTY SET FORTH ABOVE IS IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. ALL OTHER WARRANTIES ARE 

HEREBY DISCLAIMED. CXT MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, NO WARRANTY OF 

MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE.

13. Limitation of Remedies

In the event of any breach of any obligations hereunder; breach of any warranty regarding the goods, or any negligent act or omission of any party, 

the parties agree to submit all claims to binding arbitration. Any settlement reached shall include all reasonable costs including attorney fees. In no 

event shall CXT be subject to or liable for any incidental or consequential damages. Without limitation on the foregoing, in no event shall CXT be 



Page 4 of 4GZEN900NOL-1Quote #:

liable for damages in excess of the purchase price of the goods herein offered.

14. Acceptance

The foregoing terms will be deemed accepted in full by signature and return of one copy to CXT, subject to customer credit approval. A copy of any 

applicable form of payment security device (i.e. payment bonds) available to CXT shall be included with the signed copy of this agreement. 

15.  Timing of Billing to Buyer  

Seller will invoice Buyer upon shipment from its supplier or facility, unless otherwise indicated on the face of this document.

16.  Storage of Material For Buyer 

If, at Buyer's request, goods covered by this document are held at Seller's facility or service provider for more than 21 days after they are available for 

shipment, Buyer shall accept Seller's invoice and pay said invoice based on payment terms set forth herein.

17.  Material Reservation 

Seller will only reserve material for 30 days with receipt of an excecuted purchase order, quote or order acknowledgement acceptable to Seller.  After 

that time, material availability, price and shipment date may be adjusted, at Seller's option.













 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
October 3, 2011                
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development   
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gert Paraskevin, IT Director 

Cathleen Russ, Library Director 
   
Subject: Expansion and Purchase of Self-checkout Stations for Troy Public Library  
 
 
Background 
On January 26, 2009, Troy City Council approved the purchase of an integrated library system 
solution for the Troy Public Library to the highest rated bidder, Polaris Library Systems of Syracuse, 
NY, as a result of a best value process (Resolution #2009-01-025-F4b). 
 
Since then, the Polaris system has been operational and managed by in-house personnel.  Our 
withdrawal from the Suburban Library Cooperative’s shared system has saved the City over $252,000 
over the last two years.  In an effort to continually improve service delivery and provide greater 
efficiencies to the patrons of the library, the system should now be expanded to include self-checkout 
stations. 
 
Self-checkout stations are in use by most public libraries in the Detroit metro area.  Much like U-Scan 
machines in grocery stores, self-checkout stations allow patrons who have a small number of items to 
check-out to do so themselves, as opposed to waiting in line at the library’s circulation desk.  
 
Two years ago, prior to changing to the Polaris system, the Troy Public Library had three “home 
grown” self-checkout machines, which allowed patrons to check out only print material.  The Polaris 
stations have significantly greater functionality. Patrons will be able to check out audio-visual items, 
and at some point, when the library is able to accept debit and credit cards for payment of fines, these 
stations can be customized to accept those forms of payment.  Patrons will also be able to renew 
their items, and view the items currently checked out to them. 
 
Patrons who prefer a more personal touch will of course be able to check out their materials at the 
circulation desk, with the assistance of a library staff member. Self-checkout stations will minimize the 
wait time for patrons to check-out their materials.  This time savings will also allow library staff 
members to be cross-trained to perform other library functions. 
 
Due to the complexity of the system, it is desirable to allow Polaris, the company who installed and 
currently maintains the system to expand it, thus avoiding corruption of the software. 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-08



 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
October 3, 2011 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Self-checkout Stations 
 
 
Recommendation 
No benefit would be derived from soliciting additional bids.  City management is requesting 
authorization to utilize the services of Polaris Library Systems to furnish and install three (3) self-
checkout stations at an estimated total cost of $36,481.00, as detailed on the attached quotation 
#2011-0732 dated 8/10/2011. 
 
Fund Availability  
The purchase of three (3) self-checkout stations was included in the Troy Public Library’s Capital 
Budget for fiscal year 2011-12 and approved by Troy City Council on Monday, September 26, 2011 
(Resolution #2011-09-216).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Waiver - SoleSource - LibrarySelf-CheckEquip09.11.doc 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  January 26, 2009 
 

- 14 - 

F-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Submitted 
  
F-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Western Tel-Com State Contract – Purchase of 

Cable Materials and Installation Services – Carport Data Drops   
 
Resolution #2009-01-025-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase cable materials 
and installation services for carport network connectivity from Western Tel-Com Inc of Livonia, 
MI, through the State of Michigan MiDEAL program for an estimated total cost of $12,025.00; 
and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
all properly executed contract documents including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – New Automation System 

for Troy Public Library   
 
Resolution #2009-01-025-F-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide an integrated library 
system solution for the Troy Public Library to the highest rated bidder, Polaris Library Systems of 
Syracuse, NY, as a result of a best value process, for an estimated total system cost of 
$202,375.00 with ongoing annual maintenance, support, subscription and licensing fees; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the purchase of server 
hardware and software through the Regional Education Media Center (REMC) or other 
competitively bid contracts at an estimated cost of $30,270.00; and hereby REJECTS Option #2 for 
hardware purchases through Polaris; and 
  
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the contract when in acceptable form, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Community Center 

Catering   
 
Resolution #2009-01-025-F-4c 
 
WHEREAS, On February 26, 2007, a contract to provide two-year requirements of Catering 
Services at the Troy Community Center with an option to renew for two (2) additional years was 
awarded to Sankofa Housing of Detroit, MI, as a result of a best value process at an 18% return 
on gross revenue expiring March 31, 2009 (Resolution #2007-02-058-E4d); and 
 
WHEREAS, Sankofa Housing (aka A&S Catering) has agreed to exercise the two-year 
option to renew their catering contract under the same pricing, terms and conditions; 



Quotation

Date

8/10/2011

Quotation #

2011-0732

Name / Address

Troy Public Library
Attn: Cathleen Russ
510 W. Big Beaver
Troy, Michigan 48084-5289

Ship To

Troy Public Library
Attn: Cathleen Russ
510 W. Big Beaver
Troy, MI 48084-5289

Purchase Order #:

Quotation Expiration Date

10/31/2011

Approval Signature:

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (0.0%)

Actual shipping charges will be added to invoice.  
All quotes are valid for 30 days.  FOB Shipping Point.

Date:

Please fax
approved orders to

315.457.5883

Quotation Submitted by:  John Lytle

For additional information contact:
John Lytle: john.lytle@polarislibrary.com, 800.272.3414x4538 or 
Vince Messina:  vince.messina@polarislibrary.com, 800.272.3414x4528

PO Box 4903
Syracuse, NY
13221-4903
Phone:  800.272.3414
Fax:  315.457.5883
www.polarislibrary.com

This is not an invoice
PLEASE DO NOT PAY FROM THIS QUOTE

Description Qty Cost Total

Polaris ExpressCheck Countertop Self Service Checkout Kiosk
NCR Self Serve Model 60 - Polaris Version, includes: 
17 in. high brightness, high contrast LCD touch screen monitor with
proven Capacitive  Touch Screen Technology
Built-in omni-directional bar code scanner attached to monitor
Intel Core 2 Duo processor
Speed-controlled CPU fan for lower noise
4GB DDR2 memory
80GB Serial ATA (SATA) hard drive
USB bidirectional ISO 3-track magnetic swipe reader
Stereo speakers
2 powered serial ports
7 type-A USB connectors
DVI-I connector on I/O board supports DVI and VGA displays
Audio in, audio out, ADA audio out for kiosk applications
MIC input & headphone output
High-speed Gigabit Ethernet
Windows 7 Pro OS
3 Month Manufacturer's Warranty

3 4,770.00 14,310.00

Page 1



Quotation

Date

8/10/2011

Quotation #

2011-0732

Name / Address

Troy Public Library
Attn: Cathleen Russ
510 W. Big Beaver
Troy, Michigan 48084-5289

Ship To

Troy Public Library
Attn: Cathleen Russ
510 W. Big Beaver
Troy, MI 48084-5289

Purchase Order #:

Quotation Expiration Date

10/31/2011

Approval Signature:

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (0.0%)

Actual shipping charges will be added to invoice.  
All quotes are valid for 30 days.  FOB Shipping Point.

Date:

Please fax
approved orders to

315.457.5883

Quotation Submitted by:  John Lytle

For additional information contact:
John Lytle: john.lytle@polarislibrary.com, 800.272.3414x4538 or 
Vince Messina:  vince.messina@polarislibrary.com, 800.272.3414x4528

PO Box 4903
Syracuse, NY
13221-4903
Phone:  800.272.3414
Fax:  315.457.5883
www.polarislibrary.com

This is not an invoice
PLEASE DO NOT PAY FROM THIS QUOTE

Description Qty Cost Total

NCR - Extended Mfr. Warranty
5-Year 4-hr response M-F 8am-5pm

3 1,040.00 3,120.00

Polaris ExpressCheck Client Access License: $1,500
Annual Support & Maintenance $250/yr/license prorated and billed
separately. Not included in this quote.

3 1,500.00 4,500.00

Star Micronics Thermal receipt printer series 700II USB with
autocut, and power supply. Black/Dark Gray.
3 Year mfg warranty.

3 388.00 1,164.00

Windows 2008 Client Access Device License: 1 needed per self
service checkout, or library can supply. Minimum order 5 licenses

5 8.00 40.00

3M RFID Antenna & Reader: plugs in to Polaris Expresscheck
kioskk to enable reading RFID tags on books and media.
3M Model 4310 Selfcheck Upgrade Kit for Polaris 75-4700-3126-3

3 3,604.00 10,812.00

3M Annual service/support for 3M RFID Antenna & Reader. 3 355.00 1,065.00
Onsite Installation of 3M RFID reader and Antenna. Per kiosk 3 340.00 1,020.00

Page 2



Quotation

Date

8/10/2011

Quotation #

2011-0732

Name / Address

Troy Public Library
Attn: Cathleen Russ
510 W. Big Beaver
Troy, Michigan 48084-5289

Ship To

Troy Public Library
Attn: Cathleen Russ
510 W. Big Beaver
Troy, MI 48084-5289

Purchase Order #:

Quotation Expiration Date

10/31/2011

Approval Signature:

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax (0.0%)

Actual shipping charges will be added to invoice.  
All quotes are valid for 30 days.  FOB Shipping Point.

Date:

Please fax
approved orders to

315.457.5883

Quotation Submitted by:  John Lytle

For additional information contact:
John Lytle: john.lytle@polarislibrary.com, 800.272.3414x4538 or 
Vince Messina:  vince.messina@polarislibrary.com, 800.272.3414x4528

PO Box 4903
Syracuse, NY
13221-4903
Phone:  800.272.3414
Fax:  315.457.5883
www.polarislibrary.com

This is not an invoice
PLEASE DO NOT PAY FROM THIS QUOTE

Description Qty Cost Total

Shipping/Handling Charges: TBD. Estiamted to be approx
$100-150 but actual shipping charges will be added to invoice.

3 150.00 450.00

Page 3

$36,481.00

$36,481.00

$0.00



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT September 26, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

I-6 Proposed Troy Public Library Budget for Fiscal Years Ending 2012-2014 
 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy Public Library’s annual 
budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012, as recommended by City 
Management, which amends the City of Troy’s 2011-12 budget, as shown on Attachment 1;  
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy Public 
Library’s three-year budget from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2014, as recommended by City 
Management, which amends the City of Troy’s three-year budget, as shown on Attachment 2.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone I-6 Proposed Troy Public Library Budget for Fiscal Years 
2012-2014 
 
Resolution #2011-09-215 
Support by Howrylak 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby POSTPONES Item I-6 Proposed Troy Public Library 
Budget for Fiscal Years 2012-2014 until the October 17, 2011 Regular City Council Meeting. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Fleming 
No: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Approve I-6 Proposed Troy Public Library Budget for Fiscal Years 
Ending 2012-2014 
 
Resolution #2011-09-216 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy Public Library’s annual 
budget for fiscal year July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012, as recommended by City 
Management, which amends the City of Troy’s 2011-12 budget, as shown on Attachment 1;  
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Troy Public 
Library’s three-year budget from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2014, as recommended by City 
Management, which amends the City of Troy’s three-year budget, as shown on Attachment 2.  
 
Yes: Fleming, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak 
 



  

LIBRARY
2011/12
Budget

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

�    Library Director....................................................................................................Cathleen Russ

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 1 -

2011 Estimated 
Amount

2011 Amended 
Budget

2012 Approved 
Budget % Change From Prior Year

TAXES $3,060,593.00
FINES AND FEES $156,000.00
OTHER REVENUE $114,481.00
TOTAL- 271 REVENUES $3,331,074.00

PERS - PERSONAL SERVICES $2,559,519.31 $1,364,950.00 $1,492,599.80 $373,150.00 3%
SUP - SUPPLIES $49,321.63 $39,000.00 $58,000.00 $14,500.00 2%
OTH - OTHER SERVICE CHARGES $782,898.99 $696,130.00 $709,070.00 $274,900.00 8%
Department Total: Library $3,391,739.93 $2,100,080.00 $2,259,669.80 $662,550.00 5%
Fund: 271 LIBRARY- CAPITAL

BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENTS $62,406.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 400%
OFFICE EQUIPMENT $51,735.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $37,500.00 375%
BOOKS/MATERIALS $709,227.00 $300,000.00 $425,000.00 $106,250.00 $520,000.00 18%
Capital Total: Library $823,368.00 $301,000.00 $425,000.00 $106,250.00 $597,500.00 29%
TOTAL- 271 LIBRARY EXPENSES $4,215,107.93 $2,401,080.00 $2,684,669.80 $768,800.00 $2,973,495.00 10%

Fund 271: LIBRARY- Unassigned Fund Balance

Year-end Total $357,579.00

CITY OF TROY

Expense Annual Budget by Organization Report
Detail

2010 Actual 
Amount

2012 Amended 
Budget

Fund: 271 Library

Fund Balance

$774,360.00
$2,375,995.00

Expenditures

Fund: 271 Library
Revenue

$1,542,635.00
$59,000.00

Capital Expenditures



 
 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
October 11, 2011 
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
Subject: Voting Delegate for the National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities and 

Exposition – November, 2011 
 

 
It is requested that City Council appoint a voting delegate for the National League of Cities (NLC) 
Congress of Cities and Exposition, November 9-12, 2011which will be held at the Convention Center 
in Phoenix, AZ. 
 
Council Member Robin Beltramini will be in attendance at this event, and therefore is available to fill 
this appointment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JAS/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2011\10.17.11 – To M&CC – National League of Cities Congress of Cities and Exposition – November, 2011 – Voting Delegate  

BittnerA
Text Box
J-09



Privacy Policy Site Map

 

A message from NLC President, James 
Mitchell, Jr.   

Special Thanks to our 
Sponsors!

 
 

 
 

  

 

 
 

  

 
 

Arizona Cities Sponsors
 

    

  

Learn more about Sponsorship 
Opportunities or view the Sponsorship 

Brochure.

Congress of Cities & Exposition

  
This year’s Congress of Cities, to be held at the Phoenix convention 
center, offers four concurrent conferences to offer more in-depth 
exploration of the most pressing challenges facing cities.

One registration fee gets you access to all concurrent conference and 
other activities at the Congress of Cites - no separate concurrent 
conference registration fee required!

All conference programing will incorporate keynote speakers, workshops, 
 and peer networking sessions.  In addition, the conference will weave the 
topic of immigrant integration across the program Attendees can choose 
one of the concurrent conferences or sample from all workshops and 
sessions. Read more 

 

Concurrent Conferences
 

The Economic Development Conference will 
help local leaders foster global economic 
linkages and encourage entrepreneurship 

and small business — both critical ingredients to more competitive cities 
in a 21st century economy.  More

The Green Cities Conference will offer 
attendees an opportunity to explore and 
network across several topics fundamental to 

building and maintaining strong sustainability programs. Cities are clear 
and essential leaders in the promotion, development, and implementation 
of sustainability activities, programs, and policies.  More

The Infrastructure Conference will explore 
several topics fundamental to building and 
maintaining strong communities and regions. 

Programming and activities have been designed to focus on practical 
skills, tools and resources geared toward cities of all population sizes. 
 More

The National Summit on Your City's 
Families offers city officials a unique 
opportunity to learn effective and promising 

approaches for ensuring that every child has opportunities to learn and 
grow, a safe neighborhood to call home, a healthy lifestyle and 
environment, and a financially fit family in which to thrive.  More 

 

Actor, Author, Hill Harper Joins 
Speaker Line-up

Hill Harper, a mentor, author, actor and activist, has 
joined the lineup for the opening general session at 
the Congress of Cities and Exposition the afternoon 
of November 10 in Phoenix.

1 2 3

Page 1 of 2Congress of Cities & Exposition | National League of Cities

10/11/2011http://www.nlc.org/events/coc



 

 
 
October 10, 2011 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
    Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Private Agreement for Evaline Extension Phase II 

Project No. 06.909.3 
 
Background: 
 
Evaline extension phase I was approved and constructed in 2009.  The Engineering Department has 
reviewed the plans for this project and recommends approval.  The plans include sanitary sewer,  
paving, water main sidewalks and soil erosion. 
 
The Owner has provided a cash bond for escrow and cash fees in the amount of the estimated cost 
of public improvements, as required. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Approval is recommended.  

 
 
cc: Aileen Bittner, Acting City Clerk (Original Agreement) 
 Financial Department 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: G. Scott Finlay, PE 
 
 
 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2006\06.909.3 - Evaline Ave. Extension\Agenda Item Memo Phase II.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-10











BittnerA
Text Box
J-11











BittnerA
Text Box
J-12





 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:             October 10, 2011                
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development  
  Tom Darling, Darling and Associates 

Jeff Biegler, Recreation Director 
 
 
Subject: Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
Municipal credits are state-authorized funds that are given directly to the Suburban Mobility Authority 
for Regional Transportation (SMART) to be divided among every city, township and village in 
Oakland, Wayne and Macomb Counties on a per capita basis.  Community credits are a direct result 
of the SMART millage that provides opt-in communities with additional funds.  
 
Troy’s municipal and community credit dollars have been used to support the community based Troy 
Medi-Go Plus service.  Medi-Go Plus provided over 14,000 rides to senior and disabled riders in 
2010.   

 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the City enter into a contract for Municipal and Community Credits with 
SMART for $79,648 and $88,586 respectively. This fund is utilized for transportation service for 
senior citizens and persons with disabilities. 
 
 
 
City Attorney’s Review as to Form and Legality 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
CV\g\Seniors\SMART – CITY COUNCIL MEMO 11-12 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-13







 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:              October 13, 2011               
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:   Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development  
   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director 
 
 
Subject: Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds 
 
 
Background 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) mandates that Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) balances not exceed 1.5 times the current program year allocation 
sixty (60) days prior to the end of the program year (February 28th).    
 
The Oakland County Board of Commissioners adopted a policy allowing communities to protect funds 
from their two most recent program years to help comply with this regulation 
 
All unobligated 2009 and older funds are at risk of recapture December 31, 2011.  The City of Troy 
may protect unobligated 2009 funds from recapture for one additional year by requesting a waiver.  
A separate Waiver request form must be submitted for each 2009 line item to the Manager of the 
Oakland County Community & Home Improvement Division no later than December 1, 2011. 
 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that Council authorize to waive recapture of the Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) 2009 Funds.  We have not spent the 2009 funds as of this date in order to accumulate 
a large amount to be able to pay for the Flood Drain Improvement project in Section 36. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-14



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final September 1, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held September 1, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Acting City Clerk Bittner called the Meeting to order at 8:15 
AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT: David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, M. Aileen Bittner – Acting City Clerk 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of June 29, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-09-010 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of June 29, 
2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bittner 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2011-09-011 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson  

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES that 
applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be CONSOLIDATED 
for the November 8, 2011 Election in accordance with MCL 168.659. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bittner 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:20 AM. 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner 
Acting City Clerk 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01a



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2011 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Hutson called the Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:30 p.m. on September 13, 2011 in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Philip Sanzica 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Mark Maxwell 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-09-054 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 

MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-09-055 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the August 23, 2011 Special/Study meeting as 
prepared. 
 
Yes: Edmunds, Hutson, Krent, Maxwell, Schultz, Strat, Tagle 
Abstain: Ullmann 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01b



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2011 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (File Number SU 388 A) – Expansion 
of an existing Adult Foster Care Small Group Home, From nine (9) residents to ten (10) 
residents, North Side of Square Lake, East of Beach (2420 W. Square Lake), Section 6, 
Currently Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2011-09-056 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval for ten (10) residents in the Adult Foster 
Care Small Group Home, located on the north side of Square Lake and east of Beach 
Road, at 2420 W. Square Lake, Section 6, within the R-1A zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
6. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT CHECKLIST 

 
Resolution # PC-2011-09-057 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy Zoning Ordinance included a Sustainable Design Option, 
which is intended to promote environmentally sustainable and energy efficient design and 
development practices for the construction of new and the rehabilitation of existing 
buildings and sites within the City; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 12.01 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance established the 
requirement of a separate Sustainable Development Checklist; and,  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT SEPTEMBER 13, 2011 
  
 
 

3 
 

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission developed the Sustainable Development 
Checklist.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Planning Commission hereby recommends to City 
Council that the Sustainable Development Checklist be approved. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

7. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
There was general discussion on Revisions to Chapter 85, Signs. 

 
 
8. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
There was general Planning Commission discussion. 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
       
Michael W. Hutson, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2011 PC Minutes\Draft\09-13-11 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Draft October 13, 2011 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held October 13, 2011, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Acting City Clerk Bittner called the Meeting to order at 8:00 AM. 

Roll Call:  
 
PRESENT: David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, M. Aileen Bittner – City Clerk 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of September 1, 2011  
 
Resolution #EC-2011-10-012 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
September 1, 2011 as presented. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bittner 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – November 8, 2011 Election 
 
Resolution # EC-2011-10-013 
Motion by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the November 8, 2011 
Election, as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Dewan, Anderson, Bittner 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 AM. 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-01c



BittnerA
Text Box
N-02a







BittnerA
Text Box
N-02b













 Page 1 

To:           John Szerlag, City Manager  

From: Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 

Date:  October 12, 2011  

Re:  ICMA Recommendations and Status Update 

The Public Works Department continues implementation of ICMA recommendations. As we 
proceed with this process it will be coordinated with staff replacement and training, service 
and labor contracts, and the budget development and review process.  
 
Administration  
 
1. Restructure to include Parks and Building Operations into Department of Public 
Works.  
The organizational inclusion of Parks and Building Operations Divisions into Department of 
Public Works has occurred. The physical reorganization of staff into office space has been 
evaluated and a request for the corresponding required capital expense has been requested.   
 
2. Combine Streets/Drains and Parks administration and support services. 
The administration of the Streets/Drains and Parks has been combined under the newly 
renamed position of Superintendent of Parks, Streets and Drains. The Public Works 
Department will provide support services as there were none available or transferred from the 
previous Parks and Recreation Department. 
 
3. Review contracted maintenance specifications for service delivery monitoring 
(quality and customer service) with penalties for non-compliance or possible bonuses 
for exceptional performance. 
Many contracts are multiyear and completion of this recommendation will coincide as 
contracts expire. 
 
4. Develop inventory/condition formal report(s) for all assigned assets. 
This is being developed through and conjunction with Engineering, Planning, and 
Consultants. 
 

Public Works 
 
  Department 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-02c



 Page 2 

5. Establish a formal annual division or “business unit” operational review to evaluate 
current performance and plans for the following year(s).  
This review will be incorporated and coincide with the annul budget process. 
 
6. Conduct periodic “business unit” benchmarking with other similar cities and “best-
in-class” private sector companies. 
This process will be incorporated with the formal “business unit” review. 
 
7. Establish a formal Public Works policies and procedures manual, in addition to 
administrative memos in place, especially as related to standards for maintenance 
operations. 
The separate divisions have begun looking at its operations to collect information to achieve 
this goal. The full recommendation will be addressed in the second year of implementation of 
the ICMA recommendations once we are able to stabilize management staff who will be 
involved in the public information programs. 
 
8. Evaluate the broad banding (both vertically and horizontally) of maintenance worker 
positions to allow increased productivity with the same or less personnel- must 
negotiate contracts. 
We will address broad banding of maintenance positions before labor contracts expire and 
negotiations begin. 
 
9. Promote and participate in external and internal customer surveys for all divisions. 
We will look to incorporate this with city wide initiatives as has been performed in the past. 
 
10. Continue to focus efforts on all energy savings and “green” efforts to decrease 
operational costs over the long term. 
This focus will be continued in all aspects of the Public Works operations as reviews of 
maintenance operations are completed and projects are developed. 
 
11. Continue utilization of City Works GIS infrastructure management system. Explore 
utilization of hand-held devices for field work. 
The Public Works Department continues to use and expand the use of hand held devices for 
field work. This process is in conjunction with the IT and Purchasing Departments as 
technology advances and as expiring contracts are reviewed. 
 
12. Develop a public information program (for Council, administration, citizens and 
employees) that outlines the benefits and impacts of all Public Works services, 
including efficiency metrics and standards. 
This will be addressed in the second year of implementation of the ICMA recommendations 
once we are able to stabilize management staff who will be involved in the public information 
programs. 
 
Refuse and Recycling Division 
 
1. Continue as an outsourced service with regular cycle of review. 
These services are being regularly reviewed in three different approaches. They are reviewed 
daily by the Refuse and Office coordinator. As members of SOCRRA and SOCRRA 
administering these contracts, city staff attends monthly Recycling Committee meetings with 



 Page 3 

all other SOCRRA members and SOCRRA administration. The third review process includes 
the City of Troy administration having a voting member on the SOCRRA board. The board 
also meets monthly to review and approve contracts, policies, operations and expenditures. 
 
2. Complete the internal reorganization as planned. 
The internal reorganization involved combining the Refuse and Recycling Coordinator and 
Office Coordinator positions into one position. This has been completed and titled as the 
Refuse and Office Coordinator. 
 
Streets and Drains Division 
 
1. Do not execute the 5 year plan, and modify Option 1 to include 5 more Equipment 
Operators. 
City Council had taken action to reduce the Street Division field staff reductions from 10 as 
outlined in Option 1 to 5. The ICMA recommendation believes this will create sustainability for 
the division. 
 
2. Develop enhanced coordination of efforts with the Park Maintenance Division if 
transferred to Public Works. 
Enhanced coordination has been maximized between the Parks Division and the Streets and 
Drains Division by combining them under one Superintendent of Parks, Streets, and Drains. 
 
3. Consider addition of front- or side-mounted wing plows (up to 25 percent increase 
in productivity) for large trucks, and other possible equipment enhancements, to 
increase plowing efficiency.  
This equipment and recommendation currently has not been addressed because the 
Department of Public Works was working under the premise that it would not be involved in 
winter maintenance of RCOC roads which comprise the majority of potential use of this 
equipment. If a long term commitment to maintain RCOC roads for winter maintenance is 
established this recommendation will be investigated further. 
 
4. Consider the utilization of GPS tracking units on snowplow equipment to assist in 
maximizing the efficiency of plow routes. 
GPS tracking unit review has been done in the past. It was determined that the ongoing cost 
of the service was excessive. It will be reevaluated in the future.   
 
5. Accelerate the use of florescent induction or LED light change-outs on city-owned 
streetlights (savings of 50 percent or more electric use per light). 
With the replacement of approximately 120 street lights to LED as part of the EECDBG 
program we will be requesting that the energy savings be used to install additional LED 
replacements in future budgets to achieve long term sustainability of street lighting. 
 
Water and Sewer Division 
 
1. Outsource specific tasks during peak workload periods, particularly if staff numbers 
are frozen or reduced. 
We will continue the practice to outsource specific tasks during peak workload periods as in 
the past and continue to increase in-sourcing during nonpeak periods. 
 



 Page 4 

2. Offer to provide water and sewer maintenance services to other jurisdictions as 
determined by a feasibility process. 
We have provided these maintenance services to the Troy Community Schools in the past 
and will be expanding our cooperative ventures with future inter-local agreements. 
 
3. Consider the enhanced coordination of efforts with the Park Maintenance Division if 
it is transferred to Public Works. 
The Parks Division has been incorporated into the Public Works Department and we 
continue to investigate opportunities to enhance coordination between the two divisions. 
 
4. Pursue additional coordination of efforts with the Streets and Drains Division, 
particularly if the Three Year Budget (Option 1) personnel reductions are implemented. 
We have and will continue to pursue coordination efforts between all divisions in the 
Department of Public Works  
 
Parks and Recreation 
 
1. Conduct competitive contracting analysis to determine optimal level of in-house 
and outsourced service delivery. 
ICMA has recommended and the city has retained two positions in the Parks Division to 
make it sustainable. We will continue to evaluate all services in the division and determine 
which are best performed in-house or outsourced. 
 
2. Restructure with the transfer of this division to Public Works, either as a separate 
division or combined with the Street and Drains Division. 
The restructuring transfer of the Parks Division to the Public Works Department has been 
completed as a separate budgeted division under the Parks, Streets, and Drains 
Superintendent. 
 
3. Consider retaining at least one tree specialist to act as an in-house resource, and 
inspect contracted tree services. 
City Council has taken action to retain two positions in the Parks Division to keep it 
sustainable. One of those two positions is a tree specialist and has begun administering the 
city’s forestry contract. 
 
4. Consider retaining one additional full-time maintenance employee to serve as a 
contracted maintenance inspector and customer service representative. 
City Council has taken action to retain two positions in the Parks Division to keep it 
sustainable. One of those two positions is a full-time maintenance employee. 
 
5. Complete park system Master Plan. 
There is a completed park system Master Plan (5 year) that is current through 2012. It will be 
addressed at that time. 
 
6. Develop a formal assets inventory/condition ratings report. 
This is being developed through and in conjunction with Engineering Department, Planning 
Department, and Consultants. 
 



 Page 5 

7. Review contracted maintenance specifications for service delivery monitoring 
(quality and customer service), with penalty and bonus provisions. 
Many contracts are multiyear and completion of this recommendation will coincide as 
contracts expire. 
 
8. Develop formal park maintenance policies and procedures especially related to 
standards for maintenance operations. 
This will be addressed in the second year of implementation of the ICMA recommendations 
once we are able to stabilize management staff who will be involved in the formalization of 
this document. 
 
9. Consider energy efficiency initiatives such as fluorescent induction or LED lighting 
where feasible, in coordination with building operations. 
The consolidation plan includes the Department of Public Works having the Building 
Operations Division spearhead green initiatives. 
 
Fleet Maintenance 
 
1. Continue to seek in-sourcing opportunities. 
We are continuing this practice until saturation of work is limited by our facilities and staff 
availability. 
 
2. Continue aggressive review of vehicle and equipment utilization for disposal and/or 
conversion to rental. 
We are continuing this long standing aggressive vehicle and equipment review. 
 
Building Operations 

   1. Service delivery at current levels is sustainable if Option 1 reductions are made, but 
concerns exist. 
An evaluation of the Building Operation Department has been completed to provide staffing 
levels. Building Operations also has become part of the Department of Public Works and the 
organizational restructuring will assist in mitigating these sustainability concerns. 

 
    2. Alternative service delivery options- Conduct competitive contracting analysis to 

determine optimal level of in-house and outsourced service delivery. 
 An evaluation of the Building Operation Department has been completed delineating in-

house operations with peak work contracted out. 
 
    3. Reorganizing/restructuring- Restructure and transfer this function to become a 

division of Public Works. 
    Reorganization has been completed but the physical relocation of the Building Operations 

Department into the Public Works building when office space becomes available. 
 

4. Continue and potentially accelerate energy savings initiatives (LED lighting) and 
capital projects. 
 This initiative will continue and will be address during the budget process requesting the use 
of saving to advance LED lighting. 
 
 



 Page 6 

5. Develop formal building operations policies and procedures especially related to 
standards of maintenance. 
This will be addressed in the second year of implementation of the ICMA recommendations 
once we are able to stabilize management staff who will be involved in the formalization of 
this document. 

 
6. Develop a formal assets inventory/condition report 
This is being developed through and conjunction with the Engineering Department, Planning 
Department, and Consultants. 
 



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
October 11, 2011 
 
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council     
  
From:  John Szerlag, City Manager 

Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Monica Irelan, Coordinator of Continuous Improvements  

 
Subject: Evaluation of Building Operations Efficiencies  
 
 

Background 
The three-year approved budgets of 2010/11-2012/13 and 2011/12-2013/14 called for the elimination 
of three (3) full time positions from the Building Operations department by fiscal year 2011/12.  Those 
three (3) building maintenance specialists were eligible and retired under the Early Retirement 
Incentive Program ERIP. This represents a 37.5% reduction in staff since FY 09/10.  The City now 
operates with five (5) full time and (1) part time maintenance workers, one (1) secretary, and one (1) 
working director.  All positions are budgeted in the current fiscal year. 
 
The ICMA report found this department provides essential building operations maintenance to other 
departments.  The department operates as an internal service (similar to Fleet Maintenance), which 
charges users based on actual break-even costs for occupied building space, and has proven to be 
competitive in cost comparisons with contracting vendors and other cities.  As recommended by 
ICMA, the department has been reorganized and functions as a separate division out of the public 
works facility. 
 
Comparative Analysis 
An analysis has been done to determine the optimal level of in-house and outsourced service delivery 
and how Troy compares with other cities and the private sector. 
 

Organization # of Employees In-source Outsource 
Troy 7 FT / 1PT  

(1) employee licensed 
mechanical 

Renovations, electrical, 
plumbing, painting, 
carpentry, HVAC, 
preventative maintenance, 
moving of 
furniture/equipment, 
minor/major construction 
work, building automation, 
pool maintenance, roof 
repairs, locks & security, 
computer room 
environments (IT/Police), 
specification development. 

Custodial 
Elevator maintenance 
Fire suppression systems 
Large capital projects 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-02d



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
Organization # of Employees In-source Outsource 
Sterling Heights 11 FT / 6 PT Custodial, painting, minor 

repairs moving of furniture, 
maintenance related issues 
(light bulbs etc) and 
preventative maintenance 
services – No staff are 
licensed trades 

Electrical / HVAC work 

Rochester Hills 5 FT / 1 Seasonal  All preventative 
maintenance, minor 
construction work, painting, 
electrical, plumbing, 
machinery repairs, irrigation 
repairs (generators).  No 
licensed personnel  

Custodial / HVAC work / 
All large capital projects 

Kirco  - Class A 
Office Properties 
Maintenance 

4 FT HVAC maintenance and 
repairs, electrical 
maintenance and repairs, 
plumbing maintenance and 
repairs, roof maintenance 
and repair, fire safety, 
general carpentry and 
hardware, flooring repairs, 
emergency generator testing 
and maintenance, etc.  

Custodial / Elevator 
maintenance / 
Remodeling 

 
Organization # of SQ FT 2011/12 

Budget 
Cost per SQ FT Cost/sqft/FTE 

Sterling Heights 360,823 $1,341,800 $3.72 $.266
Rochester Hills 315,247  $1,650,840 $5.24 $.953
Kirco – Maintenance 506,598 $   754,831 $1.23 $.3075
Kirco – Custodial 506,598 $   519,770 $1.03  
Kirco – Elevators (14)   $  .26 

Kirco Total   $2.52 
Troy (w/o court & golf 
courses) 

 
506,608 

 
$935,800 

 
$1.84 

 

Court   32,600 $7,000 ** $  .21 $.273
Custodial w/court 539,208 $423,131 $  .79  

Troy Total   $2.84 
Building Operation’s internal service fee to departments(FY 11/12) - $1.84/sqft 
Building Operations maintains 54 buildings 
Building Operations charges Billy Casper Golf as services are rendered – 
Time/Materials 

 

**NOTE:  Even though the District Court pays the City a flat service fee of 
$50,000/year; BOPs incurs an additional $7,000 each year (averaged) to 
perform the necessary services. 

 

 
The leading reasons why managers contract services are to focus on saving money and providing 
professional expertise and management.  As the table illustrates, the city is achieving optimal results 
by retaining a core number of people and outsourcing custodial work and specialized skilled trades. 
 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 
While making comparisons in cost per square foot to the private sector, it must be kept in mind that 
municipal facilities will vary greatly when compared to Class A Office space. Class A Office space 
may get higher traffic volumes requiring for example higher custodial services. However, the 
inventory of municipal facilities will have a greater variance in size, construction type, lighting, 
materials, and use and needs all affecting cost. 
 
Next Steps 
After the City fills the one (1) vacant full time position and retains the equivalent of one (1) part time 
position, the personnel reductions will leave this department sustainable and the service levels 
adequate.  A survey performed in 2011 by American City and County magazine confirms respondents 
steadfastly maintain the top two reasons why they would not contract for services is that it does not 
improve the quality of service nor operations. 
 
Intangibles   
During 2011, the City has had three events occur where city staff was able to keep facilities open or 
re-opened quickly due to historical knowledge, municipal contacts and having technical staff on site.  
While hosting a beauty pageant at the community center, the Detroit Edison electrical feed to the 
facility failed. Building Operations management was able to contact the Detroit Edison Municipal 
Liaison and brainstorm to back feed the facility and keep it open. The main electrical feed was 
restored two (2) days later. 
 
During the nearly 100 degree heat, the air conditioning at the community center was taxed to the 
point it could not cool the facility down in order to keep it open for use. Staff on hand quickly ran water 
hoses to the roof then stayed on the roof to spray down the condensers keeping the facility open and 
comfortable. It is important to note that many of the patrons inside were families and seniors that did 
not have air conditioning of their own, and this is one of our emergency housing facilities. 
 
The City had one of the main underground electrical feeds fail that provided electricity to the City Hall 
campus.  Again, working with the Detroit Edison Municipal Liaison we were able to get Detroit Edison 
out to identify the location of the break with their specialized equipment. We then were able to use 
one of their contractors to make the repair within twelve (12) hours. If we were to go outside and 
contract these services, it is estimated that the facility may have been closed for two (2) days. 
Additional staff was dispatched immediately to shut down equipment and avoid additional financial 
loss due to damage to our equipment. 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\ Report - Building Operations 09.11.doc 



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03a



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03b



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03c



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03d



BittnerA
Text Box
N-04a

BittnerA
Text Box



BittnerA
Text Box
N-05



BittnerA
Text Box
N-06


















	20111017 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA: October 17, 2011
	COVER LETTER:
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations
	a) Presentation of the 2011 State Competition Trophy, for the Ninth Consecutive Year, to the Troy Police Pistol Team – Sergeant Wolfe, Sergeant Nastasi, Officer Bragg, Officer Cascioli, Officer Fitzpatrick, Officer Minton, Officer Stansbury and Officer Sto

	b) City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Presentation – July and August, 2011 – Cindy Stewart to Present $600.05 to Mary Ellen Kearney with Cystic Fibrosis Foundation
	c) Troy Community Coalition 20th Anniversary & Appointment of Nancy Morrison as Executive Director


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing for the Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver
	E-2 Public Hearing for the Granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Dialogue Marketing, Inc. at 300 E. Big Beaver

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments
	a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority; Economic Development Corporation
	b) City Council Appointments: Animal Control Appeal Board; Charter Revision Committee; Election Commission; Historic District Commission; Liquor Advisory Committee; Municipal Building Authority; Parks and Recreation Board; Personnel Board; Traffic Committe

	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations:
	a) Mayoral Nominations: None Submitted
	b) City Council Nominations: Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust; Zoning Board of Appeals

	I-3 Request for Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Application for Transfer of Class C License to Troy Sports Restaurant
	I-5 Winter Maintenance Agreement – Road Commission for Oakland County

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Regular City Council Meeting of October 3, 2011

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance (NIPA) Disk Based Backup System

	J-5 Public Works Consolidation Renovations
	J-6 Request to Abandon a Portion of an Existing Sanitary Sewer Easement and Acceptance of a Permanent Sanitary Sewer Easement – Sidwell #88-20-32-200-032, Cambridge Crossings Shops #2, LLC
	J-7 Purchase of Pre-Cast Concrete Restroom – Milverton Park
	J-8 Expansion and Purchase of Self-Checkout Stations for Troy Public Library
	J-9 Voting Delegate for the National League of Cities (NLC) Congress of Cities and Exposition – November 2011
	J-10 Private Agreement for Evaline Extension Phase II – Project No. 06.909.3
	J-11 Private Agreement – Granite City Food and Brewery – Project No. 08.911.3
	J-12 Request for Approval of Robert Smith Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 44 – Sidwell #88-20-02-230-011
	J-13 Municipal Credit and Community Credit Agreement
	J-14 Request to Waive Recapture of Community Development Block Grant 2009 Funds

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  No Council Referrals Submitted

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Election Commission-Final-September 1, 2011
	b) Planning Commission-Draft-September 13, 2011
	c) Election Commission-Draft-October 13, 2011

	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) Status of ICMA Recommendations – Fire Department
	b) ICMA Implementation Plan and Progress Report – Police Department
	c) ICMA Recommendations and Status Update – Department of Public Works
	d) Evaluation of Building Operations Efficiencies

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Card of Appreciation from the Daughters of the American Revolution to Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin
	b) Letter of Appreciation and Congratulations to Cindy Stewart from Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski with Leadership Troy on Being Selected the 2011 Outstanding Volunteer for the Boys & Girls Club of Troy
	c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Sarah Davis with Operation Homefront Thanking the Troy Police Honor Guard and K-9 Officers
	d) Letter of Appreciation and Congratulations to Sergeant Zielinski from Leadership Troy on Being Selected the 2011 Outstanding Volunteer for Troy Youth Assistance

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	a) Resolution from the Daughters of the American Revolution Expressing Appreciation to Mayor Pro Tem Kerwin

	N-5  Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys Press Release – Lori Grigg Bluhm Elected Vice President for 2011-2012
	N-6  2011 Third Quarter Litigation Report

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  Troy’s Organizational Evolution to Economic Sustainability

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	Q. ADJOURNMENT


	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 0
	1: 2843362
	2: 2843362

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor  MMAO (4) #6345



